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Chairman’s Statement

EFRERE

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Legend Strategy
International Holdings Group Company Limited, | am pleased to present
the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the
“Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in operating budget
hip hotels, providing hotel consultancy services and hotel management
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

As a result of the increase of competition in hospitality market, the
Group recorded a net loss of HK$51.54 million for the Year and it was
mainly due to an impairment loss for our two joint ventures companies
and decrease of revenues generated from the provision of hotel
consultancy services in 2014.

In order to tackle the tough operating environment, the Group continued
the implementation of stringent long term cost control measures and
slowdown the Group’s investment project in hotel industry, including
our hotel network and maintain the numbers of hotels.

Looking ahead, the Board and management expect the business
environment to remain challenging but we are cautiously optimistic
towards the overall outlook of the Group. We will endeavor to stabilise
the existing operations and seek for new income source to enable the
Group to grow and move forward.

In order to achieve these goals, the Group raised approximately
HK$33.3 million and HK$33.9 million in August 2014 and January 2015
respectively. The net proceeds therefrom have been used to repay the
Group’s outstanding debts and returned the Group to a healthy financial
position. The placing activities can help the Group to capture potential
business opportunities, facilitate business expansion and enhance its
earning potential.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRERE

OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES IN OUR
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

With uncertainties prevailing in the global economy, including
developments in the PRC economy, 2015 will remain a challenging
year for the Group. Nevertheless, in view of favourable factors such as
the continued sturdiness of the PRC economy, growth in per capita
disposable income, government encouragement of domestic retail
spending, the Group remains fully confident in its future development.

In connection with efficiency enhancement and brand building, the
Group will improve the building of functional centres and system
platforms and seek optimization in budgeting, marketing, human
resources and financial management. We will also further improve our
branding system to enhance the international competitiveness of the
“Welcomeinn” brand.

APPRECIATIONS

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to all of our employees, who have made invaluable
contributions to the Group and whose dedication and hard work has
played no small part in growing “welcomeinn” into a famous hotel brand.
| would also like to take this opportunity to thank all shareholders,
investors and the public for their enduring support of the Group. In a
concerted effort, we will continue to work with our shareholders to
pursue value enhancements and a bright future for all.

Fong Man, Kelvin
Chairman and Executive Director

27 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEER R DN

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in budget hotel operations, provision
of hotel consultancy services and hotel management services in the
PRC.

Hotel Operations

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has three
leased-and-operated hotels and four managed hotels under operation.

Revenue from hotel operations segment included the sales of hotel
rooms and hotel membership card, and the hotel management services
income. Segment revenue was HK$29,700,841 during the financial
year ended 31 December 2014, representing a decrease of 11.11%
as compared with segment revenue of HK$33,412,313 for the same
period of the last financial year. Segment revenue decrease was due
to the close of hotel in Caitian in the PRC. The average room revenue
of all hotels for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 was
RMB171.9 compared with RMB183.7 for the same period of last
financial year, representing an decrease of approximately 6.42%. The
average occupancy rate of all hotels for the financial year ended 31
December 2014 is 90.55% compared to 88.7% for the same period
of last financial year. The increase was due to the increase of marketing
and promotion in the PRC.

The revenue from hotel management services was HK$2,806,312
during the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
HK$2,335,769), it was generated from the provision of hotel
management services for Welcomeinn Daimeisha Hotel, Welcomeinn
Fushan Hotel, Welcomeinn Sanya Waterfront Hotel and Welcomeinn
Sanya Jiuhua Hotel.

The Group owns two joint venture companies by 60% each. Each of
the joint venture company establishes a wholly-owned subsidiary
named Welcomeinn Sanya Waterfront Hotel and Welcomeinn Sanya
Jiuhua Hotel to conduct the business of hotel operation in Sanya, the
PRC.

For the past three years, the two joint ventures recorded a net loss
and therefore the Group has recorded an impairment loss of
HK6,797,484 for the two joint ventures companies for the year ended
31 December 2014. The net loss is due to the increasing number of
tourists in the PRC visiting South East Asia countries instead of
choosing Sanya for vacation and the increase of operating cost in
Sanya. The Directors believe that the impairment loss is an non-cash
expense and would not affect the cash flow of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN R DN

During the financial year of 2014, the Group has five new hotels under
constructions:

The Group confirmed a location in the North of Xiachong Fairground,
Daya Bay district, Huizhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC, to
develop a leased-and-operated hotel (the “Xiachong Hotel”). The
renovation work for Xiachong Hotel started in the fourth quarter of
2012. The Xiachong Hotel was expected to finish refurbishment in
2013 but due to the changing of floor plan and interior design of hotel,
the commencement of operation will be delayed until the first half of
2015.

The Group confirmed a location in the Huicheng district, Huizhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC, to develop a leased-and-operated hotel
(the “Huizhou Binjiang Hotel”). The construction of hotel is almost
completed and is expected to commence operation in the first quarter
of 2015 after the approval of certain business licenses by the local
government in the PRC.

The Group confirmed a location in Changping district, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC to develop a leased-and-operated hotel
(the “Changping Hotel”). As the declining of hospitality in Dongguan
City, the Group decides to sublet the hotel to other investors for
operation to minimize the cost of operation and obtain a stable income
to the Company. The Directors believe that the subletting of hotel is in
the best interest of the Company and shareholders and increase the
revenue of the Group.

The Group confirmed a location in Buji, Longgang district, Shenzhen
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC, to develop a leased-and-operated
hotel (the “Buji Hotel”). Refurbishment of the Buji Hotel has been
completed and waiting for the approval of business license for
operation.

The Group confirmed a location in YueXiu district, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC to develop a leased-and-operated hotel
(the “YueXiu Hotel”). The Group decides to develop a budget hip hotel
in major city in the PRC to avoid the uncertainty of economic in local
area. The YueXiu Hotel is under construction and development stage
and is expected to commence operation in second half of 2015.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MWEBEKREEZERERL A

R-Z—PBFE - NEEHEA L RAEEHN
BIE

AEBHEEHANTEEREEMNT AL ERE
BBSMZILAIERR— %ﬁf%%@EU&ﬁ
BIE]D) c BRBEENRETIRER _T——F5
MEERSG - EREERAR - E—:inﬁ
B IiE - BERREREEEARGES
MERESEEE T —RAFEFF -

AEEREHNTEERESMNTEREER
—XEEKEEE ([FNBTAE]) - BEZ
REETT  WIARKHEEMBRAHET
EERRBRN T -—HFE-FTEFRE -

AEEREHNTEERERE=TE FEER
—REELLEE ([FFEE]) - ARR=™
BEZXBRRE  AEERESBESHTH
REEELE MEJM%@&$&%$
TmX%EWk BEERR 2HBEEREAR

RAEIRBER 2 &ENEE - JFEEIE A 5 B U
A °

AEBHEEHNTBEERERYITREERND S
FRR-RXHEELEBE ((hEEE]) - S
BECTREIF TR - BATEGREG2ERS
ZERHIR -

AEERENTBEEREBEMNHEERMHE
R—FZEELLBE ([BFBEE]) - AEER
EAEPBEEAWTEREERBMEE - A%
AR NHEEMN - BMABEEREREER
BRME  BHRE_T—RAFTEFHRE-



In March 2012, the Group had identified two locations in Meilin, Futian
district and Shekou, Nanshan district respectively in Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC to develop two leased-and-operated
hotels (the “Meilin Hotel” and the “Shekou Hotel” respectively). However
during the starting of construction and renovation, the Group
discovered that these two premises may not be the suitable locations
to operate the hotel business so the Group had changed the location
from Meilin and Shekou to Changan (&% #8), Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC. However, due to an abrupt slowdown
of economic growth in Dongguan City since February 2014, the Group
decided to withdraw all hotel development projects in Changan and
the Group can get the refund of HK$25,700,000 from the construction
company according to the construction contracts in June 2014. The
construction company agreed to repay the refund by 24 monthly
installments plus 5% interest per annum. The Group has been accepted
the construction company to repay HK$25,700,000 by installment of
24 months due to avoiding the event of default and increase the interest
income of the Group. However, there was a transfer fee for two hotels
in total of HK$4.37 million which was non-refundable. The Directors
believe that the withdrawal of hotel development projects and repaying
the refund by installment are in the best interest to the Group and the
shareholders.

On 27 January 2014, the Company entered into a memorandum of
understanding (“MOU”) with Vanli Holdings Company Limited (& J71%
f% B R A Rl (the “Developer”), a property developer in the PRC in
relation to a proposed business cooperation (the “Proposed Business
Cooperation”) in developing or operating not less than 50 budget hotels
in the wholesale markets, multi-functional commmercial complexes and
shopping malls which are currently developed by the Developer in the
PRC. However, the slowdown of the economy in the PRC and increase
of uncertainty in hospitality industry, the Developer has cancelled the
Proposed Business Cooperation with the Group after the MOU has
been expired.

Future Development and Outlook for Hotel Operations

The Group plans to slowdown the expansion of its hotel network in
the PRC due to the uncertainty of economic situation and increasing
of competition in hospitality industry. The Group will also minimize the
cost of operation and review all current hotel projects. The Directors
believe that the Group should take a conservative strategy to face the
competition and rapid market changes.

RZE—ZF=8 AEEEHRIRFPEER
ERYmEHEENEEILE L AMEE WE
B ABERAREELEEE (55 A K
G R [ AEIE]) « AT - EEEREET
RETR - NEBEBRZMEDETETEL
CHEER 2 REDE - WAEBEE BELA
ki AMATREREREMRLHE - A
i ARRETHNEEERE T —WF A
BEARARE BT —WNF A KREERE
BEMARELZENEEERETS - BRERZE
F£ER - AEEREEE N RESF25,700,000
BITHR IR o BERQRIRE L2418 A 5 B 5K
MMEBSEMN AN MER - HRBRENEHF
RABREEIEMFBWAZERE  AEBELDF
BEEXEEAFIN4EADBNR R EE
25,700,000/ 7T AT - AEBEDAEMZOBE
2R E S H4,370,000/8 70 AN AR E - EE
RE - BENBEERFTIIRAD BRARERR
RO EREBRRE Z HEFE -

R-ZB-—ME—A-++B  AQAEREE
WEMEFENZERARAR ([ZFAEE]) R
U RETE ([RRERE]) RRAREZ
FEmLAEREEREBAMETRRREN D
REORMU R MBS - ZUWEAEGERER
BRSO EL B EETERREAER
EAEERE]) o A - B0 B AR BB
[EEFETEN  ZRERERRAETRE
MECBUREASBENEHEA RS °

RS B EE A=

RREERR R EEEEHT RBA AL
AEEFERELEEBEETENER - &
SETBNBELERREERE - SARE T
BEREBIETE - EEREA - ERFHRMNT
BEEZHZE  RIRBHI/AEEZ L

o

ﬁio

Annual Report 2014
—E-NEFEFR




Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN R DN

Hotel Consultancy Services

For the year ended 31 December 2014, there is no revenue generated
from the provision of hotel consultancy services. The major reason is
that two investors informed the Group in early August 2014, in writing
to rescind their hotel consultancy service agreements, which were
entered into with the Group in April 2014 due to lack of sufficient capital
to develop their hotel businesses. At present, the Group has
approached again the two investors and discussed to restart the hotel
consultancy services. Currently, both parties are still in discussion and
expected to have conclusion before 30 June 2015. If two customers
finally do not fulfill the obligation in the hotel consultancy agreements,
the Group reserves a right to take legal action against the two investors.

As uncertainties prevail within the hotel business in the PRC, the
Directors believe that the Group would reconsider its strategic approach
with regards to the hotel consultancy service until the hotel business
in the PRC has improved.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group has recorded a net loss attributable to owners for the year
ended 31 December 2014 of the Company approximately HK$51.54
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
HK$44.29 million or 610% compared to approximately HK$7.25 million
for year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Last Year”).

The net loss for the year was mainly due to the decrease of revenues
generated from the provision of hotel consultancy services in year 2014.
The economic slowdown in the PRC causes the investors to be more
conservative in the hotel accommodation sector and affects the revenue
of the Group’s hotel consultancy services. Also, the increase of
operating expenses and impairment loss in joint ventures cause the
loss of the year 2014.
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The Group reported a total revenue of approximately HK$29.7 million
(2013: approximately HK$58.0 million) and recorded a year-on-year
decrease of approximately HK$28.3 million or 48.8% from the Last
Year. Revenue mainly came from the hotel operations of approximately
HK$29.7 million, representing 100% of total revenue. The following
table shows the key information of the Group’s leased-and-operated
hotels for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013:

Total st
Total available room nights* e R E
Occupancy AfE=
ARR (RMB)* FHEBR (AR~

RevPAR (RMB)* FHEEREERA (ARE)*

ARR: the average room revenue of all hotels divided by the total occupied
room nights

RevPAR: the average room revenue of all hotels divided by the total
available room nights

# Hotel Caitian has been closed in 2013
Operating Costs

The total operating costs increased by HK$11.76 million, or
approximately 20.03%, from HK$58.70 million for the last year to
HK$70.46 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The increase
of operating expenses are due to: i) a write off of termination of
development of two hotels for HK$4,376,500; ii) a provision of
HK$4,423,101 has been made for impairment on trade receivables;
and iii) increase of entertainment and professional fee expenses during
the year of 2014. The following table shows the total operating costs
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013:

REMERX

Operating lease expenses

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Employee benefit expenses

EEBAFX

Utilities NGRS
Other operating expenses Hah &z

NEB RSB EIA 429,700,000 T (=T —=
F 1 #958,000,00087T) + B EFEIRFRL
28,300,000/ 7T + 18 £48.8% o WA EE R
AE S & B4 529,700,0008 7T - 152U A
100% ° TREFIIAEBHE-_T—NFRE_F
—=F+ A=t HUEFEHELLHEZ
FEER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-HLEE

—F-=F BOLLER
2013 % change
136,315 (26.63%)
88.7% 1.85%
183.7 (6.42%)
162.9 (4.42%)

* FHEME - FTEBENFEREERARIAEA
EEFBHH

- FHERERUA  IEBENFEEERA
R DARE R HAH B S e B

' REBEER-Z—-=FHH
S JoRN

HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HILFE 8K
B ANH EFEHS8,700,0008 T 0+ EF
11,760,0005 7T 70,460,000/ 7T © B4 &
20.03% ° LEFRTIZMNE B AN ZF —HFi)
A 4% | 2% e R 0B IS M Bl 854,376,500 7T 5 i)
DLIEWE B FIRIE L R E R 4,423,1018 T
NijREREXEERARATEN - HEZT— Y
FER-E—=F+-F=+—HILFENEL
ERAFEIMT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLFE

—E-=F BEHLE
2013 % change
14,822,036 21.27%
7,389,933 (1.82%)
16,827,186 (21.83%)
1,799,710 3.21%
17,863,871 69.17%
58,702,736 20.03%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DT

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$2.32 million (2013: approximately HK$19.6 million).
Gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including “current and non-
current borrowings” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
“equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position
plus net debt. The gearing ratio for the year ended 31 December 2014
is nil (2013: nil).

The Group was in net cash position as at 31 December 2014.

Significant Changes to Financial Position

The debtors’ turnover days for the financial year ended 31 December
2014 was 94 days (2013: 69 days). It increased by 25 days as a result
of slowdown of collection from debtors and poor financial performance
in hotel industry.

For hotel operations, the majority of the customers of the Group pay
by cash upon hotel room checkout. As a result, the trade debtors
balance was immaterial compared with the revenue. The Group expects
the customer payment pattern to be consistent in the future.

For hotel consultancy services, the trade debtors balance was HK$3.16
million after impairment loss of HK$3.16 million as of 31 December
2014. The trade debtors balance is expected to be fully settled in 2015
based on the repayment schedule as agreed with the customer.

For hotel management services, the payment term is quarterly
settlement after the end of every quarter. The Directors are confident
on the recoverability of the remaining outstanding trade debtors
balances.

Capital Structure

On 12 August 2014 and 9 January 2015, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 43,500,000 and 52,300,000 new ordinary shares at
placing price of HK$0.79 and HK$0.66 each respectively. Save for the
issue of new ordinary shares, there was no material change in the
capital structure of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2014. The total number of the issued shares of the Company was
261,770,001 (2013: 216,500,001) as at 31 December 2014.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

Majority of the assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December 2014, the Group
had no significant exposure under foreign exchange contracts, interest,
currency swaps or other financial derivatives.

Significant Investment

For the year ended 31 December 2014, other than those investment
in construction of new hotels and joint ventures, there was no significant
investment made by the Group.

Material Acquisitions or Disposals

For the year ended 31 December 2014, there were no material
acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies by
the Group.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets (2013: nil).

Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total capital commitments of
approximately HK$2.95 million (2013: approximately HK$38.2 million)
primarily related to the development and construction of new leased-
and-operated hotels in the PRC. As at 31 December 2014, the Group
did not have any material contingent liabilities (2013: nil).

Operating Lease Commitments

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total operating lease
commitments of approximately HK$108.42 million (2013: HK$130
million). The operating lease commitments are mainly related to the
rental of hotels premises for hotel operations.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had 126 employees (2013: 128) as at 31 December 2014.
The Group’s remuneration practices are in line with the prevailing market
practice and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R E R

Use of Proceeds in Fund Raising Activities

On 12 August 2014, the Company entered into the Placing agreement
with the Emperor Securities Limited (the "Placing Agent"), pursuant to
which the Placing Agent has conditionally agreed to procure, on a
best effort basis, not less than six independent places to subscribe in
cash for the shares with the placing price at HK$0.79 per share (the
"Placing"). The Placing was completed on 12 August 2014. The
proceeds raised would be applied as general working capital and
repayment of liabilities of the Group.

The following is a summary of the use of proceeds for the amount of
HK$33,300,000 after the placing of the shares.
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DRINB B AR AR SR ERIH0.7975
TZREBRERN (REEHE]) - BEEHE
BER-_Z—MNFNA+-H%K - TEERE
BRIE—MEBESNEEAEEAR -

LATR &80 & M7 12 BT 1S 2 7833,300,000/8 7T .2
HAEME -

Repayment of liabilities EEBE
General working capital —REEESD
Total FEES

OUTLOOK

In the future, the Group shall slowdown to expand the number of
leased-and-operated hotels, and balance the risk and reward in hotel
investment in the PRC. Moreover, the Group will focus on minimize
the cost and maximum the profit in hotel operation so that the Group
will become breakeven in year 2015.

The Group will also seek for more business opportunities in different
segments to diversify the risk in the coming years.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERHE

The Company is committed to ensure a high standard of corporate
governance in the interests of the shareholders and devotes
considerable effort to maintain high level of business ethics and
corporate governance practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout
the year, except for certain deviations as specified with considered
reasons for such deviations as explained below. The Board of the
Company will keep reviewing and updating such practices from time
to time to ensure compliance with legal and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”). At the same time, it also has the duty to
enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of
the Group. Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee.
All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with
their respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising
certain functions of the senior management.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group had adopted Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of
dealings. The Company had made specific enquiry to all the directors
(the “Directors”) and the Directors have confirmed compliance with
this code of conduct throughout the period from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the
Company during this period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At present, the Board of the Company comprises eight Directors as
follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Fong Man Kelvin (Chairman)
Ms. Fong Nga Peggy
Mr. Mak Yiu Cho
(Appointed on 19 November 2014)
Mr. Law Fei Shing
(Appointed on 19 November 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry

Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie

Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong

Mr. Frostick Stephen William

List of directors and their role and function are available on the websites
of Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 30 to 34. Other than that Mr. Fong Man Kelvin, the chairman
of the Company, is a brother of Ms. Fong Nga Peggy, an Executive
Director of the Company, there are no family or other material
relationships among members of the Board.

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. They are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group'’s affairs. The Board
is accountable to shareholders for the strategic development of the
Group with the goal of maximizing long-term shareholder value, while
balancing broader stakeholder interests.

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies and policies of the Company. Apart from the regular board
meetings of the year, the Board also meets on other occasions when
a Board-level decision on a particular matter is required.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, management should
provide all members of the board with monthly updates giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company had not
commenced issuance of a monthly update on the Group’s business
performance as set out in Code C.1.2 of the CG Code as the finance
department underwent a thorough review of the department operation
and allocation of manpower. The Board understands that compliance
with the CG Code is the essence of lifting the Company’s corporate

governance standard. Thus, the management of the Company has
prepared the monthly updates to the Directors from August 2014

onwards.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, Audit
Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meeting, Nomination
Committee meeting and general meeting during the year ended 31
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December 2014 is set out in the following table: SEREHN T
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Board Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
3.2 EZeE3 2 EVZEGe3  FMZEgeE | RAZEeER REAE
(attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.
of megting held) of megting held) of megting held) of megting held) of megting held)
(HErg/ (HErE/ (HErg/ (HErE/ (HErg/
BezeNg)  BERENY)  BAEZENE)  Bhezand)  Bigiafy)
Executive Directors HiES
Mr. Fong Man Kelvin Tk 919 NA TER N/A FE R N/A FE R 112
Ms. Fong Nga Peggy BERRT 719 NA TER N/A FE R N/A FE 112
Mr. Mak Yiu Cho 3 b
(appointed on 19 November 2014) (R=5-m%
t-ATNREZfR) 11 NATER NATER NATER NATER
M. Law Fei Shing BEERE
(appointed on 19 November 2014) (R=5-m%
t-ATNREZfR) 11 NATER NATER NATER NATER
M. Yue Kwai Wa Ken AEERE
(appointed on 4 July 2014 and resigned (RZZ-HELANBEZAR
on 18 November 2014) RZE-WE+-A+/\RE) 5/6 NA TiEE NA FiE NA FiE NA FiE
M. Yip Chung Wai David EEELE
(appointed on 4 July 2014 and resigned (RZZ-MELANBEZAR
on 18 November 2014) RZE-NE+-A+/\RE) 46 NA TiEF NA RiE NA FiE NA FiE
Non-executive Director FHES
Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, #/[ECold Highham& &
Daniel Joannes Ludovicus (RZZ-RENA=REA)
(resigned on 3 September 2014) 3/4 N/A TiE A 112 11 i
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFyiEE
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry EE 49 22 112 111 112
Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie EaTE 8/9 22 22 111 22
Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong byt 99 22 22 111 22
Mr. Frostick Stephen William Frostick Stephen WiliamZt & 7/9 12 112 0/1 22
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All Directors are provided with details of agenda items for decisions
making with reasonable notice and welcome to include matters in the
agenda of Board Meeting. Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring
that the Board procedures are complied with and advising the Board
on compliance matters. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board committee are kept by Company Secretory and are opened for
inspection as request by Directors. During the year, the Board was
given sufficient time to review and approve the minutes of Board
meetings and meetings of Board Committees. Directors are also
provided with access to independent professional advice, where
necessary, in carrying out their obligations as Directors of the Company,
at the expense of the Company. Directors who are considered to have
conflict of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions
or issues to be discussed would not be counted in the quorum of
meeting and would abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

All Directors assume the responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company for the well-being and success of the Company. They are
aware of their duties to act in good faith and in the best interests of
the Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records
S0 as to enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s overall financial
position. The Board updates shareholders on the operations and
financial position of the Group through, half yearly and annual results
announcements as well as the publication of timely announcements
of other matters as prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has four Independent Non-executive Directors, at least
one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise, in
compliance with the Listing Rules. Each of the Independent
Non-executive Director has made an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
is of the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

According to the Company’s articles of association, newly appointed
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting and
shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

During the year, the Company had arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against the Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision of A.2.1. of the CG Code, the role of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The post of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are separated to ensure a clear division between the
Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer’s responsibility to manage the Company’s business. The
separation ensures a balance of power and authority so that power is
not concentrated.

Mr. Fong Man Kelvin as a Chairman of the Group, plays a leading role
and is responsible for effective running of the Board and responsibility
of overall management, business development and implementation of
the Group’s strategy determined by the Board in achieving its overall
commercial objectives. He is also responsible for ensuring the Board’s
effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting its agenda and
taking into account any matters proposed by other directors for
inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is responsible for
ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures
are followed by the Group. During the year, the Chairman has held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors to faciliate
effective contribution and communication.

The chief executive officer’s duties have been undertaken by the
members of the Board. The Company is in process of identifying
suitable candidate with appropriate experience as its chief executive
officer. The Board considers that this structure will not impair the
balance of power and authority of the Board. It currently comprises
four Executive Directors, and four Independent Non-executive Directors
(The “INED(s)”), with INEDs representing 50% of the Board. Such a
high percentage of INEDs in the Board could ensure their views carry
significant weight and it reflects a strong independent element in the
composition of the Board. At present, the Board also believe that under
the leadership of Mr. Fong Man Kelvin as the Chairman, the Board’s
decision could be made effectively and it is beneficial to the
management and development of the Group’s businesses.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout
the period under review.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, all the Non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term of one to three years
but subject to termination in certain circumstance as stipulated in the
relevant service contracts. At each annual general meeting, one third
of the Directors for the time being (of if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) will retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.
Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of members after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed as
an addition to the existing board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties
and has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate
governance functions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i) Developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i)  Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;

(i) Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(v)  Reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In 2014 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company considered diversity of board members can be achieved
through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

On recommendation from the Nomination Committee, the Board will
set measurable objectives to implement the Policy and review such
objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and
ascertain the progress made towards achieving those objectives. The
Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure
its continued effectiveness from time to time.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee was set up on 22 June 2011 to oversee
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management. The terms of reference is available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and the senior management and determining
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible to ensure that no
Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration, which will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. Member are provided with sufficient resources,
including but not limited to, the access to independent professional
advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations, at the
expense of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2014. The members reviewed the remuneration package
of the Directors and the senior managements, assessing performance
of Executive Directors, approving the terms of Executive Directors’
service contracts and make recommendations to the Board as the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.

EEEMESTIEEE

FA - EZECRMNEZTERESTERE
(IZBEK]) EhEHABEREFENEZ (L
ZHE e ARRRRAEBRETEHERERE
EZEXEZ L BEEATERRES - Fi
XIERHEER  HELR  REERAE - E
SEMEZRTRAAET - WEZEREAR
UEBLEAFEDEREEEKRE S T(LMNE

Ng
5 o
I

REANTEFEN-RIZT/IAE - B
BARRMER - Fie - XERHABEBES - B
R SRR R AR o REORTERIRATERIEA
MEHIESREES® RN ERMEL

BIRALZBEZHEER  EES8HIEAG
ERBUAERZEER - X TRRTZF B RN
MREAEEMNEEERZEARIEE - 8
AR BERNEE R ZEBR - LR
HEEBEX -

FHWEES

ARRER-FE——F XA+ BRI HMH
ZEg UEREREENSNEBREZHFH
BRI - A RBESE N AR R MR A
AL AR -

FEZEEe v T ZEHRRERESRARER
BzHMBEREEBEANESSELRRERE UK
ETrREERSABTEBIHMNAE - H
ZEGNAEMAMEEERNETMHBHEAL
HLERATHEFHH - ERFHELERA
KRR ARREBEARTHERARDEE -
EXEEREZTEER (BREETRATELER
EEBYEERD) NBETHSZET  BAMA
RN AEHE o

FMEEEREBE—_T-NOFE+_A=1—~H
IFFERT2REH - ENEC R SEELS
MEEBZFHIR  FHERTEFZRR -
HWERITEFERH S O GEREBERRITE
ELERERB MO RIELERES -

Annual Report 2014
—E-NEFEFR




Corporate Governance Report
LI LE

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members as at the date
of this report namely:

Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie (Chairman)

Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, Daniel Joannes Ludovicus
(resigned on 3 September 2014)

Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry

Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong

Mr. Frostick Stephen William

All of the current members are Independent Non-executive Directors.
In addition, pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5, the annual

remuneration of the member of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:
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HKS$Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 7 7L £1,000,0007% 7T

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee on 22 June
2011 for making recommendations to the Board on appointment of
Directors and succession planning for the Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing
the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors and
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy. Members are provided with access
to independent professional advice, where necessary, in carrying their
obligations at the expense of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting. The members reviewed the current
composition of the Board and to discuss about the Board restructure
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company
pursuant to its terms of reference (available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange) and the Board Diversity Policy.

During the year, the Company appointed four Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Mak Yiu Cho, Mr. Law Fei Shing, Mr. Yue Kwai Wa Ken and
Mr. Yip Chung Wai David. The Nomination Committee has reviewed
their backgrounds, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and education background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The Nomination Committee considered current Board
Composition has achieved the objective of the Board Diversity Policy.
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In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Fong
Man Kelvin, Mr. Mak Yiu Cho, Mr. Law Fei Shing, Dr. Wong Hak Kun
Jerry and Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie shall retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of the
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises four members as at the date of
this report namely:

Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie (Chairman)

Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, Daniel Joannes Ludovicus
(resigned on 3 September 2014)

Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry

Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong

Mr. Frostick Stephen William

All of the current members are Independent Non-executive Directors.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee on 22 June 2011
with written terms of reference (available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange) that set out the authorities and
duties of the Audit Committee adopted by the Board. The audit
committee performs, amongst others, the following functions:

° Review of the financial information of the Group;

° Review of the relationship with and the terms of appointment of
the external auditors; and

° Review of the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system.

The Audit Committee are given sufficient resources to oversee the
internal control system of the Group, reports to the Board on any
material issues, and makes recommendations to the Board. During
the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s
annual results and annual report for the year ended 31 December 2014,
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the Company’s
internal control and risk management systems and processes, and
the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2014.

REBARB 2 EBMERMA - TXXEE - BB
HELE - BEREL  BERHBELRERBE
HARBERRBFAG LRELSERER
B

REZEGEANARAEERFEFARE L
ENZEFEEZES -

RARERY  REZEGMUATHEREMR

=

BB (F/E)

#({£1-Cold Highhamg) &
(RZZE—WFNA=HFM

ES L n

RGBS E

Frostick Stephen William%t 4

FIAREK B RBIIFNITES -
BEREES

ARRER-FE——F XAt BRI EX
ZEg  HEMBEEE (NARE R
R HEH) REESEMRMAZEREZRRE Y
BANBE BRZEGRET (HPEFE) AT
BAE

o EHAKENBEH

o RFEINEZBENORERENEZEFEE
K

. FEN RN AP Sk S
g R E IR R

MEBERIE &

BERZESRERREREEARE 2R
BREG  MEEFERSEMEAR[E - LAE
EeEhEEES REEFE  BREE®
EEMNASEHEE-_T—NF+-_A=1+—8H
HEEz2FEENFR  BBERHRLARE
P ARBlZ2 AEEERER E R ARG &R
12 U RINBRZ BN 2 B -

BERZBEENBE_THNFt+-_A=+—H
I FERITRREH o

Annual Report 2014
—E-NEFEFR




Corporate Governance Report
ﬁ?"ﬁﬂ¢k$ﬁth

The Audit Committee comprises four members as at the date of this
report namely:

Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie (Chairman)
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry

Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong

Mr. Frostick Stephen William

All the members are Independent Non-executive Directors (including
one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee
is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The audit committee reviews the adequacy of the Company’s internal
financial controls, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management policies and systems established by the management of
the Company (collectively “internal controls”).

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
systems including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management.

The Board is responsible for the overall internal control framework and
is fully aware of the need to put in place a system of internal controls
within the Group to safeguard the interests of the Company’s
shareholders and the Group’s assets, and to manage risks. The Board
also acknowledges that no cost effective internal control system will
preclude all errors and irregularities. A system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor, including whether such
non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has incurred an
aggregate fee of approximately HK$1,216,000 to the external auditor.
In which, the amount of HK$1,200,000 is paid for the audit purpose
and HK$16,000 is paid for non-audit purpose. The non-audit services
consist of tax matters, review and provide other reporting services.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view. In
preparing the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies and
standard are selected and applied consistently.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider, Ms. Au Man Wai
(“Ms. Au”) as the Company Secretary. Its primary contact person at
the Company is Mr. Fong Man Kelvin, Chairman of the Company. The
Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are followed and for facilitating communications among Directors as
well as with shareholders and management. During 2014, Ms. Au
undertook not less than 15 hours of professional training to update
her skills and knowledge.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
a key to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of
open and timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders
and investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual and interim
reports.

The corporate website of the Company (www.legendstrategy.com) has
provided an effective communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional documents
during the year. A consolidated version of the Company’s constitutional
documents is available on the Company’s website and the website of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has continuously provided relevant training materials to the
Directors. Directors participated in continuous development relating
to roles, functions and duties of a listed company director or further
enhancement of their professional development by the way of attending
training courses or reading relevant materials. All Directors had provided
the Company their training records for the year under review. The
Directors and officers are indemnified under a Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in discharge of
their duties while holding office as the Directors and officers of the
Company. The Directors and officers shall not be indemnified where
there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against
them.

The participation by individual directors in 2014 is recorded in the table
below:
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Mr. Fong Man Kelvin FXEE O 0
Ms. Fong Nga Peggy M2 @A+ O 0
Mr. Mak Yiu Cho BERRE L E a 0
Mr. Law Fei Shing ZEPBIL ST A 0 ]
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry ESE ) 0 ]
Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie = I ek S A O g
Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong R B 0 ]
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION HRRZBE
The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy with 7N B B 54N ERL BOBR 2 Bk - B8 ERKRE
objective to provide our shareholders with detailed information about Rt A BA QRN FMER - FHRZeeENE
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in =~ BJIE R NTHE R E 5 ARERAERN - KA FH

an informed manner. The Company would review the shareholders
communication policy on a regular basis.
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The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include annual general meeting, annual report, various notices,
announcements and circulars. Procedure for demanding a poll has
been included in circulars accompanying notice convening a general
meeting and such procedure has been read out by the chairman of
the general meeting. The annual general meeting and other general
meetings of the Company are primary forum for communication
between the Company and its shareholders. The Company shall
provide shareholders with relevant information on the resolution(s)
proposed at a general meeting in a timely manner in accordance with
the Listing Rules. The information provided shall be reasonably
necessary to enable shareholders to make an informed decision on
the proposed resolution(s). At Annual General Meeting in 2014, a
separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of Directors.

At the annual general meeting held on 26 June 2014 (the “2014 AGM”),
the Executive Directors and Chairman of the Board, the chairmen of
the audit, remuneration and nomination committees and representatives
from the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, were
present to attend to questions from shareholders. There was two
general meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Under Code Provision A.6.7, Independent Non-executive Directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. At the said meeting, all the Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Directors were presented to
enable the Board to develop a balanced understanding of the views of
the shareholders of the Company, except Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry
who is unable to attend the Extraordinary General Meeting due to other
business commitments.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders are requested
to follow article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company are laid down in Article 85 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting
unless a notice in writing of the intention to propose such person for
election as a Director, signed by a shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed for election as a Director) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given, and a notice in
writing signed by such person of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the Registration Office. The
minimum length of the period during which such notices are given
shall be at least seven (7) days and the period for lodgment of such
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.
Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director are available on the Company’s website.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of company secretary, by email: admin@legendstrategy.com,
or mail to Room 2401-02, 24/F., Jubilee Centre, 46 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public
in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus
of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure
an effective distribution of the resources and shareholders’ interests.
The senior management will continue endeavors in maintaining,
enhancing and increasing the Group’s corporate governance level and
quality.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESENSREEE 2BERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fong Man Kelvin (75 XX), aged 52, is the chairman of the Company
and was appointed as an Executive Director on 23 February 2011. He
is responsible for the daily operation of the Group and overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He is also actively involved in
designing hotels, including both the leased-and-operated hotels and
hotels under the hotel consultancy agreements, for developing the
Group’s business. Mr. Fong holds the degree of Bachelor of Arts in
architecture from the University of Lincoln, the degree of Master of
Science in architecture from the University College London and the
degree of Master of Business Administration from the University of
Sheffield in the United Kingdom. Mr. Fong also obtained his
postgraduate diploma in architecture from the University College
London in the United Kingdom. Mr. Fong is the brother of Ms. Fong
Nga Peggy, the executive Director.

Ms. Fong Nga Peggy (2 £ [H), aged 50, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 28 December 2012, is a sister of Mr. Fong Man
Kelvin, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the
Company. She was awarded a Bachelor’s Degree of Arts (honours) in
Accountancy by The University of Kent at Canterbury, the United
Kingdom. Ms. Fong is a certified public accountant of lllinois, the United
States of America. Ms. Fong has over 19 years of finance and
accounting experience, working with international accounting firm.
From 2000 to 2006, she was appointed as the financial controller of
Office Maintenance Service Co. Ltd, a company engaged in engineering
and construction business and she was responsible for financial and
corporate management.

Mr. Mak Yiu Cho (% #18), aged 56, was appointed as an Executive
Director on 19 November 2014. He is a chartered member of Chartered
Institute of Housing and has over 30 years of experience in property
management prior to joining our Company. Mr. Mak has held senior
management positions in a number of property developers in Hong
Kong. Currently, Mr. Mak is a director and general manager of Silverman
Capital Limited.
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Mr. Law Fei Shing (21 3), aged 55, was appointed as an Executive
Director on 19 November 2014. He is a member of American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), USA and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA).
Mr. Law has over 24 years of experience in the audit and accounting
services.

Currently, Mr. Law is an executive director and the company secretary
of Anxian Yuan China Holdings Limited (stock code: 922); and a non-
executive director of Beautiful China Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 706) and Pak Tak International Limited (stock code: 2668), those
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also a company secretary
of Orient Securities International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8001),
the shares of which are listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Law was an executive director (from August 2004 to December
2011), the company secretary (from August 2004 to May 2011) and
the chief executive officer (from November 2007 to December 2011)
of Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (stock code: 353),
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He was also an executive director (from January 2009 to May 2013)
and the company secretary (from January 2009 to January 2013) of
Bestway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 718), the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Law
resigned as company secretary and re-designated from executive
director to non-executive director of Pak Tak International Limited (stock
code: 2668) on 16 December 2014,

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry (ZE % &), aged 59, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 22 June 2011. Dr. Wong
obtained his Master of Business Administration in international
management from Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Australia
and Doctorate in Business Administration from the Bulacan State
University in the Republic of the Philippines. Dr. Wong also holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in theology from the Alliance Bible Seminary and a
Master’s Degree of Christian Ministry from the Alliance Bible Seminary.
Dr. Wong has also been the chairman of Happy Tree Social Services,
a charity organization, which aims at providing social services to the
disadvantaged minorities over the world.
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ESENSREEE 2BERE

Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie (E % 18), aged 47, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 28 December 2012. Mr. Wong
was awarded a Bachelor’s Degree in Accountancy by the City University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Mr. Frankie Wong has over 16 years of finance
and accounting experience, including but not limited to, financial
management, corporate management and auditing, serving in
international accounting firm, manufacturing and retailing companies,
listed property development company, securities and futures brokerage
company and shipping company. He is currently the financial controller
of Shine Vision Investments Limited, a company engaged in wholesale
and retailing of eyewear products in the People’s Republic of China
and the South-east Asia, who is responsible for planning and directing
the finance and accounting functions, providing financial analysis and
budgets to the management and other corporate administrative
functions. He is also the independent non-executive director of U
Banquet Group Holding Limited which is listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong (£l ), aged 46, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 4 December 2013. He is a
qualified lawyer of the People’s Republic of China with 13 years of
experience in handling commercial litigation. Mr. Liu obtained a degree
of Automation from Guangdong University of Technology (formerly
known as Guangdong Machinery College) in 1992. He is currently a
practicing lawyer at Guangdong HengHe Law Firm. He also serves as
a legal consultant of different enterprises, involving in the negotiations
for the Shenzhen Metro Project and Shenzhen Airport Project, etc. He
has 13 years of experience in commercial law, litigation and general
law.

Mr. Frostick Stephen William, aged 65, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 4 December 2013. He is
currently the president and chief executive officer of the Compeer Group
(Macau) and Grey Eagle Group (Hong Kong). He is also the executive
director of Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited and China Fortune
Investments (Holding) Limited which are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Frostick
obtained a Juris Doctorate at Old College School of Law, Nevada,
United States in 1984, a Master of Public Administration and a Bachelor
of Science in Business Administration at the University of Nevada, Las
Vegas, United States in 1976 and 1974 respectively. Mr. Frostick has
over 36 years of experience in leading capacities in the State
Government of Nevada, United States, large corporations and
international consulting organizations. During his past employment with
Kepner Tregoe Inc., Mr. Frostick was involved in the design,
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development and led the implementation of “Team Concept” in Chrysler
Motors Inc. Mr. Frostick also participated in the negotiations with
respect to the labour agreements between the United Auto Workers
Union and Chrysler Motors Inc.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. He An Ying (fiF %), aged 46, is the administrative manager
and human resources manager of the Group. Ms. He joined the Group
in December 2005 and is responsible for overseeing the application of
various licences required for the operation of the Group, liaising with
the relevant government authorities for inspection, purchasing of
materials for the operation of the Group’s hotels. Ms. He completed
the 1ISO 9001: 2000 Internal Quality Auditor Course organised by &
=E B AR A A (Kaugdaxin Management Consulting Company
Limited®).

Mr. Zhang Guo Xing (3R Bl £), aged 36, is the finance manager of
the Group. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2007 and is responsible
for overseeing the finance department of the Group. Mr. Zhang studied
industrial management and obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering
from Hunan University in the PRC. He also obtained a qualification
certificate of Speciality and Technology in Accounting of intermediate
level issued by 12 A R 2L FIE] A EEB (Ministry of Personnel).

Ms. Li Yu Zhen (ZE®), aged 52, is a senior district manager of the
Group. Ms. Li joined the Group in January 2006 and is responsible for
supervision of hotel operation, hotel room sales and customer relations.
Ms. Li obtained several awards in the hotel industry, including the
Advanced Worker Award (Jc3 T{E#) by the aforesaid companies,
for her outstanding performance.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Kam Tik Lun (£ #1&), aged 39, joined the Company as the
Company Secretary in March 2011 and redesignated to Chief Financial
Officer on 4 September 2013. Mr. Kam is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Kam obtained a
bachelor’s degree in commerce from the Concordia University, Canada,
a postgraduate diploma in international corporate and financial law
from the University of Wolverhampton, United Kingdom and a master
of laws in international corporate and financial law from the University
of Wolverhampton, United Kingdom. Mr. Kam is an independent non-
executive director of China 3D Digital Entertainment Limited and
Unlimited Creativity Holdings Limited, both companies are listed on
GEM board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Au Man Wai (Bl 81 £), aged 32, was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company on 4 September 2013 and is responsible
for the company secretarial functions of the Company. Ms. Au is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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Report of the Directors

EEEWRE

The directors (the “Directors”) have pleasure in submitting their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review are set out in the section of “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 14.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in operating budget hip hotels
and providing hotel consultancy and management services in the PRC.
There was no significant change in its activities during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segments is set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 46 of this
annual report.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2014.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not own any major property or property interests as at
31 December 2014.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium account plus
retained earnings, amounted to approximately HK$96,117,135 million.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in the equity
on page 49 respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s customers can be categorised into two types, namely
hotel guests and hotel investors under the hotel consultancy and
management.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 17.93% (2013:
49.1%) of the total sales and the Group’s largest customer accounted
for approximately 8.49% (2013: 21.6%) of total sales.

The main suppliers of the Group comprise of suppliers of disposable
amenities, cleaning products and laundry services. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 89.9% (2013: 90.2%) of the
total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier accounted
for approximately 28.7% (2013: 30.5%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the financial year
ended 31 December 2014.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The Group did not have any outstanding bank loans as at 31 December
2014 (2013: Nil). Details of borrowings of the Group during the year
are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group had capitalised interest of HK$675,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for year ended 31 December
2014 is set out from page 111 to 112 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Fong Man Kelvin
Ms. Fong Nga Peggy
Mr. Mak Yiu Cho
(appointed on 19 November 2014)
Mr. Law Fei Shing
(appointed on 19 November 2014)
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa Ken
(appointed on 4 July 2014 and resigned on 18 November 2014)

Mr. Yip Chung Wai David
(appointed on 4 July 2014 and resigned on 18 November 2014)

Non-executive Director:
Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, Daniel Joannes Ludovicus
(resigned on 3 September 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry

Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie

Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong

Mr. Frostick Stephen William

RITEEREMER

R-ZZ—WF+_A=+—H  A~EBELET
AREERTEE(CT—=F:8) - BEAX
SERFEAZ BERFBRANGS M B HRKWME
24 o

BEXRERE

HE_Z-—NMF+_-_A=+—HBIFER ' &
SE%HEHBERNEF B 6750008 7T °

AEBMBHE

AEEBEE _ZT-HNF+t_A=+—BLLFE
MEEREHENAFREIIIEI12E ©

oS

RENEEAREAH  ARRZ2EEWNT -

BITEE :

TR

RERZ LT

BRERE
(R=F—ME+—A+NLAEZRE)

BB L
(R=F—ME+—A+NLAEZRE)

REERE
R-ZZE-—NMF+-AMBEZER
R-ZE—WF+— A+ \BHEIE)

EEEEE
(R-ZE-—NMF-AMBEZER
R-ZE—WF+— A+ \BHEIE)

HHITESE :
& {#1-Cold Highham&} &
(RZZE—WFNA=HFT

BYFHTESE

E Rl

=in Mot

RGBS E

Frostick Stephen William?%t 4

Annual Report 2014
—E-NEFEFR




Report of the Directors

EEEHE

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa Ken and Mr. Yip Chung Wai David have resigned as
Executive Directors of the Company with effect from 18 November
2014 due to their other business commitments. Lord De Weyer of
Cold Highham, Daniel Joannes Ludovicus has resigned as Non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 3 September 2014
due to personal reason. Mr. Yue Kwai Wa Ken, Mr. Yip Chung Wai
David and Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, Daniel Joannes Ludovicus
have confirmed that they have no disagreement with the Board and
they are not aware of any matter regarding their resignations that need
to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.
The Board would like to express its sincere gratitude to Mr. Yue Kwai
Wa Ken, Mr. Yip Chung Wai David and Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham,
Daniel Joannes Ludovicus for their valuable contributions to the
Company during their tenure of office.

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out from pages 30 to 34 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed for a
specific term of one to three years, but subject to the relevant provisions
of the Articles of Associations or any other applicable laws whereby
the directors shall vacate or retire from their office.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Remuneration packages of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.
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DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or controlling shareholder of the company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, were
as follows:
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Mr. Fong Man Kelvin Beneficial Owner 102,576,466 39.18%

7 ExFEA
During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were no debt
securities issued by the Group at any time. Save as disclosed herein,
as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company or their associates had any interests and short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which each of them has taken or deemed
to have taken under the provisions of the SFO); or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register
referred to therein; or which were required, pursuant to Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2014, so far as is known to the
Directors, none of the substantial shareholder and no person (not being
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to
have, interests or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or who is directly or indirectly,
to be interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date or this
report, the Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors, the management of the Company and their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) that compete or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

During the reporting period, the Independent Non-executive Director
have reviewed the compliance with the non-competition deed based
on information and confirmation provided by or obtained from Mr. Fong
Man Kelvin (the “Covenantor”) and his associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules), and were satisfied that the Covenantor and his
associates have complied with the provisions of the non-competition
deed entered into between the Company and the Covenantor on 25
June 2011.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There is no contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Details of related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. None of the related party transactions as disclosed in Note
33 to the consolidated financial statements constitutes a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to issue of this report, the Company has maintained the
sufficient public float under the Listing Rules.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 126 employees.
Remunerations of the Group’s employees are determined in accordance
with the terms of government policies and by reference to market level
and the performance, qualifications and experience of employees.
Discretionary bonuses are paid to few employees as recognition of
and reward for their contribution to the corporate development. Other
benefits include contributions to retirement schemes, medical schemes,
unemployment insurance schemes and housing allowances.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year under reviewed.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which are subject to the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (“Scheme”) which was
adopted pursuant to a resolution of the sole shareholder passed on
22 June 2011 and adopted by a resolution of the Board on 22 June
2011. The purpose of the Scheme is to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future developments and expansion
of the Group. The Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage the
participants to perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
and allow the participants to enjoy the results of the Company attained
through their efforts and contributions.

The Scheme became effective on 22 June 2011 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
adoption of the Scheme, the principal terms of which were summarized
in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix V to the
Company’s prospectus dated 30 June 2011 (the “Prospectus”).
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Number of share options

EREHA
Option Option Option Option
Exercise As at granted exercised lapsed cancelled Asat
Exercisable price 31 December during the during the during the during the 31 December
Category Date of grant Period per share 2013 period period period period 2014
W-%-Zf RBRE 3 H-g-pf
t28 REARE ] XAH MEREE T8
£ el el BROEE =t-A NERE BhE EhE Wk =t-A
Employees 21 February 2012 21 February 2012 1o 138 900,000 - (720,000 (180,000 - -
20 February 2014
8 Z5-CEZACTA :Z—_¢H+EE
S-ME-AZTE
Employees 8 October 2013 8 October 2013 to 1.822 7,500,000 - (1,050,000) - - 6,450,000
7 Qctober 2015
B2 ZE-CETAAR Z5-ZETANRE
“E-RF+ALH
8,400,000 - (1,770,000 (180,000 - 6,450,000
PENSION SCHEMES RKEE
As of 31 December 2014, the Group had no forfeited contributions #HZE-Z—MFE+-_F=+—H  KEEHfE

available to redeem its contributions to the pension scheme in future
years (2013: nil)
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AUDITOR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI") has been appointed
as auditor of the Company by the Board with effect from 4 November
2014 to fill the casual vacancy arising from the resignation of
PricewaterhouseCoopers on 4 November 2014 and to hold office until
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”). A
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint
ZHONGHUI as auditor of the Company.

Save for the above, there were no other changes of auditor of the
Company in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been audited by ZHONGHUI.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES
This annual report is available for viewing on the website of Stock

Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company
at www.legendstrategy.com.

By order of the Board
Fong Man Kelvin

Chairman

27 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B X BET RS

MM o

ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LEGEND STRATEGY
INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Legend
Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 46 to 110, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014,
and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Lok

Practising Certificate Number PO6084
Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

e s Rk E A2 E WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= ==

—OEF—A=t—HLEFE

2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
Revenue Uk &5 7 29,700,841 57,968,906
Operating lease expenses EEREMAY (17,974,662) (14,822,036)
Depreciation of property, Mz - BERZETE
plant and equipment (7,255,616) (7,389,933)
Employee benefit expenses EERAHAXZ 8 (13,153,151) (16,827,186)
Utilities N:E S (1,857,458) (1,799,710)
Other operating expenses HthE @M (30,219,888) (17,863,871)
Other income N ON 10 159,995 2,054,822
Operating (loss)/profit EE (FEB) B F (40,599,939) 1,320,992
Finance costs =YD 11 (448,789) (848,630)
Impairment of interests in joint REERR 2 ERRE
ventures 18 (6,797,484) —
Share of results of joint ventures D 1E& &R A4 18 (12,331,951) (3,765,796)
Loss before tax BRFi AT B 18 (60,178,163) (3,293,434)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FeBiE R, (%) 12 8,634,678 (3,960,343)
Loss for the year attributable ZAFEEAELEREE
to owners of the Company 13 (51,543,485) (7,2583,777)
Other comprehensive Hib2m (Bi8) W
(loss)/income:
ltems that may be reclassified to AJFEE# DB EBm 2 HE -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on BREBINEBEECIENZHE
translating foreign operations (1,098,573) 2,296,761
Share of other comprehensive BEEERR Z EMEEEA
income of joint ventures 18 6,210 —
Fair value changes on available- A#HESREEATFTEES
for-sale financial assets — (178,000)
Other comprehensive EREMEE (FB) kS
(loss)/income for the year, R &
net of tax (1,092,363) 2,118,761
Total comprehensive loss ARTEBEANEEFA
for the year attributable to 2HEBEASE
owners of the Company (52,635,848) (5,135,016)
Loss per share gREE 15
— Basic (Hong Kong cents) — &R (L) (21.96) 3.99)
— Diluted (Hong Kong cents) — —#&5& (&1l (21.96) (3.99)

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MR R

As at 31 December 2014 R=_ZE—MF&+—-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—mF —T—=
Notes HK$ HK$
M aE BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ~ #1% - & k& 16 77,312,841 53,340,427
Prepayments TR RIE 17 24,169,069 59,969,169
Rental deposits HEZS 17 2,243,510 1,425,273
Prepaid operating leases TERGEHE 17 9,823,653 10,529,348
Interests in joint ventures REEBERRZ = 18 6,831,600 25,432,735
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTIS R EE 19 1,688,384 1,284,573
122,069,057 151,981,525
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables JE W AR R 20 7,741,933 10,295,474
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE  ZE Kk
other receivables H b e W 5K I8 17 27,839,907 2,743,151
Amounts due from joint ventures JEI & & R B 78 21 2,114,950 1,024,454
Bank and cash balances He MIB1THE 2,322,143 19,585,536
40,018,933 33,648,615
Current liabilities RBEE
Provision for asset retirement MEEEEREE 22 2,422,083 2,299,176
Trade and other payables JE {1 BR 5% K H b P& A< 5k I8 23 21,696,678 16,625,205
Current income tax liabilities EHMESHRAasE 1,733,623 13,936,056
Finance lease payables FET R E R E IR 24 419,560 342,694
26,271,944 33,203,131
Net current assets RBEEFE 13,746,989 445,484
Total assets less current EEAERRBAER
liabilities 135,816,046 152,427,009

Annual Report 2014

“E-UFEFR




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MR R

As at 31 December 2014 R=_ZE—MF&+—-A=+—H

2014 2013
—ZE-MF —T—=
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Provision for asset retirement mEEE EEIREE 22 1,485,747 1,440,769
Finance lease payables FET @B HEFUIE 24 155,583 516,251
1,641,330 1,957,020
Net assets EEZFHE 134,174,716 150,469,989
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves RATBEEAELRERRHE
attributable to the owners
of the Company
Share capital % A 25 2,617,701 2,165,001
Reserves i 131,557,015 148,304,988
Total equity DA 134,174,716 150,469,989

The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 110 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Fong Man Kelvin

B
Director

EF

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Fong Nga Peggy

B2 E

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

==
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAARAARE
Available- Retained
Share-based for-sale earnings/
Share Share Exchange Statutory payment security Other ~ Shareholder's  (accumulated
capital premium’ reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ reserve’  contributions® losses)’ Total
NRfREEZ e REzd/
i Ritig* EXff EERE HECTH E5EE  EREE: RREE  (ZiEE)* 3
Note 28(c)) ~ Note28(ci) ~ Note 28(c)ii)  Note 28(c){i) Note 28(c)(v
k8ol 2 2 [ O = ] R ]
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
IE: AT BT AT BT AT AT AT AT AT AT
At1 January 2013 RZ%-ZE-3-H 1,800,001 38,030,244 1940614 1,161,018 204,000 178,000 8,020,110 075104 46959994 119,085,005
Total comprehensive En2EkE/ (58)
incomefloss) for the year &% - - 2,096,761 - - (178,000) - - (7,283,777) (5,135,016)
Employee share option B SRR
Deneft - - - - 2,892,000 - - - - 2,892,000
Exercise of share ESfiiRE
options by employees 5,000 1,086,750 - - (180,750) - - - - 911,000
Conversion of FETAREE
convertible notes 360,000 32,877,000 - - - - - - - 32,787,000
Transfer o Statutory ENETEE
ESeIve = = = 443,245 = = = = (443,245) =
M3 December2013 ~ R=F-Z%
and 1 January 2014 +ZA=1-AR
Z3-RE-A-A 2,165,001 71,493,994 4281375 1,604,263 2,035,250 - 802010 20751024 39262972 150,469,989
Total comprehensive EmGeEELE
loss for the year - - (1,092,363) - - - - - (51,543,485  (52,695,848)
Exercise of share ESfiiRE
options by employees 2% 17,100 3,411,175 - - (558,775) - - - - 2,810,700
Issue of shares on NREEIRE
placement 2% 435000 83,930,000 - - - - - - - 34,365,000
Transaction costs RERENRANA
attributable to
placement - (895,125 - - - - - - - (895,125)
Transfer o statutory E\iRER
6SEIVE - - - 138,500 - - - - (138,500) -
A3iDecember20t4  H-E-RE
tZB=t-A 2617701 107,940,644 3,145,012 1,742,763 2,376,475 - 8,020,110 20751024 (12419013 134,174,716
Note: Bt 5 -

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserve of  * LilEHEEPREEMBRARBERD

approximately HK$131,557,015 (2013: HK$148,304,988) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

131,5567,0168 L (ZF—=
A ITT) 8

FEFE -

© 148,304,988
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #{Z — T —MF+_A=+—HIEFE

2014 2013
—E-mF —=—=
HK$ HK$
BT PETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELENRERE
Loss before tax B i A E 18 (60,178,163) (3,293,434)
Adjustments for: TR
Depreciation e 7,255,616 7,389,933
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease A S EEE 865,788 864,587
Finance cost on asset retirement obligations WMEEEEREEANREKRA 180,912 173,407
Finance cost on finance lease liabilities MEHESENRENKA 39,033 53,962
Interest on overdue payments 8 HA ST R LS 3,844 —
Finance cost on convertible notes A AR E AR B A A AN = 621,261
Interest on other loan wholly repayable —FRNEEEER
within one year H At B B 900,000 —
Interest income on non-current rental RS AT E R IER
deposits carried at amortised cost HEZSMBWA (56,346) (73,667)
Bank interest income RITH B WA (592) (631)
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of JE U BR FURVE B, ()
trade receivables 4,423,101 (586,846)
Share of results of joint ventures DREERRZEE 12,331,951 3,765,796
Impairment of interests in joint ventures REEBE AR ZERRE 6,797,484 —
Share based payment expenses VARR 1D B B A 2 5k 2 - 2,892,000
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 U a0 F 58 - 1,040,800
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BER&EZERE
and equipment 5,167,969 2,276,985
Gain on disposal of available-for-sales HETHEESHEE W
financial assets - (54,976)
Operating (loss)/profit before working capital BEECBBRIALE
changes (E518) = A (22,269,403) 15,069,177
Increase in prepaid operating lease TEfF 48 & &L 0 (197,351) (395,671)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other JFE K BR 3R % HL th 8 W IR
receivables () (1,300,455) 40,595,188
(Increase)/decrease in rental deposits MEZe Ggm,~ wd (766,204) 100,571
Increase in trade and other payables JFE 4T BR 3% % EL b FE A< FRIE 38 0 5,096,102 6,442,019
Increase in amounts due from joint ventures JEUL & & R B FRIBE N (1,090,496) (1,034,084)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations wE (A EXSe (20,527,807) 60,777,200
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEXMEBFEH (32,524) (343,179)
PRC income tax paid B RS (3,935,511) (2,633,397)
Interest on overdue payments paid B s B SR A B (3,844) —
Interest paid on other loan wholly repayable BEXf—FREEEN
within one year HEaERAE (900,000) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating LETES) (FTA) EE
activities B & F R (25,399,686) 57,800,624

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHELENRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME  BKENEHE (358,733) (22,001,301)
Capital injections to joint ventures HEBRAIZEE (522,089) (9,705,600)
Increase in prepayment for property, plant W - BEREEZ
and equipment TEAST R I8 8 0 (26,193,767) (46,162,783)
Decrease in deposit for an acquisition of WSS 2 e
business - 10,000,000
Interest received 2 FE 592 631
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale LEAHEESHEE
financial assets FriS 318 - 1,038,976
Net cash used in investing activities BEEEFTAE S T8 (27,073,997) (66,830,077)
Cash flows from financing activities METHEENESARE
Proceeds from conversion of share options RN FT1S FR08 2,870,700 911,000
Repayment of finance lease liabilities EEmEHERERE (322,835) (495,595)
Net proceeds from issue of shares on MR E BTG 2 MBI FE
placement 33,469,875 —
Net cash generated from financing activities RMEEESRIRE F5 36,017,740 415,405
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RE&RBEELEEYR LD FHE (16,455,943) (8,614,048)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FUNRERAEFEY
of the year 19,585,536 27,880,476
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4N B BEE 2= B Bl 57 (807,450) 319,108
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FHROBEESRESESEY
the year 2,322,143 19,585,536
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #{Z — T —MF+_A=+—HIEFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is Room 2401-2402, 24/F Jubilee Centre, 46 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the budget hotel operations and provision
of hotel consultancy and management services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$51,543,485 (2013: HK$7,253,777) for the year ended 31
December 2014 and as at 31 December 2014 the Group had bank
and cash balances of HK$2,322,143 (2013: HK$19,585,536).

In order to improve the Group’s operating performance and
alleviate its liquidity risk, management is implementing measures
to control costs and contain capital expenditures. Further
investments in hotel operations will be made only when the Group
has sufficient financial resources after meeting its day-to-day
working capital and other capital commitment requirements.
Moreover, on 9 January 2015, the Group completed placing of
52,300,000 shares at a price of HK$0.66 per Placing Share. The
net proceeds from the placing amount to approximately HK$33.9
million will be used for general working capital of the Group. With
the availability of additional funding from the placement and the
anticipated positive cash flows from the hotel operations, the
directors expect that these will improve the Group’s cash flows
and financial position in the coming twelve months.

The Company’s directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections. The cash flow projections cover a period of twelve
months from the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements. In the opinion of the directors, based on these cash
flow projections and in light of the above, the Group will have
sufficient financial resources in the coming twelve months to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly,
the directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 January 2014. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong
Accounting Standards; and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to
the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
financial statements and amounts reported for the current year
and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and
revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact
on its results of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise its judgements
in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas
involving critical judgements and areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to these financial statements, are
disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #{Z — T —MF+_A=+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Joint arrangement

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement.
When assessing joint control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties,
to determine whether it has joint control. A potential voting right
is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Joint arrangement (Continued)

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A
joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement.

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the joint
venture in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share
of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the joint venture
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests
in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

FTESHEE @

HEZH (&)

KRZHRAEEBRAERA - A&
i’%z%,\ﬂﬁ?ﬁ Bt - AR LR
HENS T ERZFAEZLHRERNE
E ERaEAEEE - aERRRE
KRZHE - Bt - FAZL I LRZE
N ERZFAZLHNEEFE -

RAEBRAZRE TR EN RS W
WRINER - WA IRIATER - R—IRUK
BRZAERRIZARMNEERABIZE
RIS B D FEE - WEERARBL
AEEERERERARZAHHEERAE
ZRFEFE - BIEBRAREARK - B8
TRt ARE ZREE YN ARHERR
T BIRA B RER R & RERRERZ
AREEITRER S o AR B EA AT #
AEERBEZAFEFESRKEX
A AEREZEENRABE®ESR -

AEBREEGEAFRPRBRBENGAE
SR ﬁﬁﬁ!ﬂﬁﬂﬁl%é@ﬁﬁ“iﬁﬁuﬁéﬁ?
BREBAER - WEERZ R EERKRE
ZEEHEEHAE - HAKERIEAER
AEBBEHESRAZRERAGE AR
(BREEMEMEEREYGRIR) @ BIARE
B TE—HERER  BIFAKEEES
BEEIRREGERRANK - WEERAHE
®BEBFEN - AIREEENEBEEFNA
ERERERER ZERR - T ERERE
REEIG 2 ZFmA

AEFEESENARZRHZARERE
M BAKEREERR ZEEHH - I
HRPRHBEEANER 2 EELIR
B BAREREBBETTAEE - AER
ARSI HRC RV EREE - MRS
AEBRBOBE -

Annual Report 2014
—E-NEFEFR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A R R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 XEgHEE@®

(Continued)

Foreign currency translation SEBRE

(a)  Functional and presentation currency (@ EERZIIEH
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the REBESEB HMBREMBEZ
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the HE @ NIRZERCEMEZEE
primary economic environment in which the entity operates KERE 2EK ([T EH]) 51
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial 2 o REMBWMERUARRAFIEE
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), BEERENEEET([ET]) 2
which is the Company’s functional and presentation A e
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial (b) HEBHUBHERZXZREER

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

(i)  Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:
Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and 7 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvement
stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost
includes the costs of leasehold improvements and capitalised
interest charges arising from borrowings used to finance these
assets during the period of construction. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until such time
the relevant assets are completed and are available for intended
use. When the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment and depreciated
in accordance with the policy as stated in the preceding
paragraphs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
The Group as lessee
(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as operating leases. Lease payments (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a
finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of
the leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as
owned assets.

The Group as lessor
Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)
Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit
or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment. An allowance
for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference
between the receivables’ carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of the allowance
is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)
Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

(a)  Hotel operations

Hotel revenue from hotel room and conference room rental
is recognised when the services are rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(b)  Provision of hotel consultancy services

Revenue in respect of provision of hotel consultancy service
is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the transaction at the end of the reporting period. The stage
of completion of each transaction is determined based on
the proportion of costs incurred at the end of the reporting
period compared to the estimated total costs of the
transaction. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated
reliably when (a) the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably; (b) it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; (c)
the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting
date can be measured reliably and (d) the costs incurred
for the transaction and the costs to complete the
transaction can be measured reliably.

(c) Hotel management income

Hotel management income from operating a hotel is
recognised when the services are rendered.

(d)  Membership fee income
The fair value of the consideration received or receivable is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the
membership.

(e) Rental income on sub-leased hotel premise
Rental income in respect of rental of a sub-leased hotel
premise is recognised on a straight-line basis over a lease
period of 10 years.

(f)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. XESFBX @
(Continued)
Customer loyalty programmes BEFAHETE

The Group operates a loyalty programme where customers
accumulate points to exchange free nights staying in the hotels
operated by the Group. Sale of hotel rooms that result in
membership points are accounted for as a separately identifiable
component of the sales transaction(s) in which they are granted
or sold (the “initial sale”). The fair value of the consideration
received or receivable in respect of the initial sale is allocated
between the components, i.e. the hotel rooms sold and the
membership points granted. The fair value of the membership
points is estimated by reference to the benefits (i.e. free extra
night for staying) that the customer would obtain when redeeming
the membership points and the expected future redemption rate.
The estimate on expected redemption rate is based on statistical
analysis of past customer behaviour. The Group reviews the
loyalty programme on a regular basis, unused and expired
membership points would be removed from the programme.
Revenue from the membership points is deferred and is
recognised when the points are redeemed and the amount of
revenue is recognised based on the number of points redeemed
relative to the total number expected to be redeemed.

Employee benefits
(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b)  Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss
represents contributions payable by the Group to the funds.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(b)  Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme organized by the government in the
People Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group is required
to contribute a specific percentage of the payroll of its
employees to the retirement scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the retirement scheme. No
forfeited contributions may be used by the employers to
reduce the existing level of contributions.

(c)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors and employees. Equity-settled share-based payments
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date
of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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4.

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@)

(o)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i)
(i)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(0

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(i)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)
Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets except
deferred income tax assets and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is
not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when material.

KEY ESTIMATES
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are discussed below.
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5. KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

—NE+=—A=+—HBItFE
5. TEMFEFT @
EHFREMNEIERE (&)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a)  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (@ Y% BERKERITE
The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual AEEEEEEAEEME  BE
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s MR G ERFEE - FRE
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on BERAEBTERS - ZEFTHIRE
the historical experience of the actual useful lives and ME RN E - BB &R
residual values of property, plant and equipment of similar HERERAFHEFHSREBN AT
nature and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation KERMVED o fim A 58 PR 4F B3 R U8R
charge where useful lives and residual values are different BEERAT ZHFTHER  A5EE
to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write- FETERY - B REXKTE
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have B B AT 368 e X 3 B B EE A B sk
been abandoned or sold. WOR

(b)  Impairment of property, plant and equipment (b) YE - BERZELRE

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment

EASEMHRBENBEBEURA] BEEX

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that WEREER  NEB®ESD
the carrying amount may be not recoverable. The ¥ BEEEEBEDRE - JE

recoverable amounts have been determined based on fair
value less costs of disposal calculations or market
valuations. These calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset value
may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal or net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
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based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; S5 Ri)RRIR S RETEBRE
and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in AMEEXZRE  BREEWEEAS
preparing cash flow projections including whether these mETERIZ S LAE R EAIR o

cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management

EEEREREMMERR (BRER
%muzi‘ﬁ ﬁlJﬁﬁFH BB RYIERERR

in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or %) BREE - Alge g EIRERIE A

the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, Fr A E’J@EETEF ERE M

could affect the net present value used in the impairment FEAREBNPBARLREEE
o

test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of the operations.
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5. KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

(@)

(e)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of the
trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year
in which such estimate has been changed. If the financial
conditions of the debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.

Impairment loss for interests in joint ventures

In determining whether the interests in joint ventures are
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement in
assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the value of interests in joint ventures; (ii) whether the
carrying value of joint ventures can be supported by the
net present value of future cash flows; (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate; and (iv) dividend
policy of the joint ventures.

Asset retirement obligations

The Group evaluates and recognises, on a regular basis,
the present value of the obligations which arise from future
reinstatement of leased hotel premises upon the end of
lease terms. To establish the present value of the asset
retirement obligations, estimates and judgement are applied
in determining these future cash flows and the discount
rate. Management estimates the future cash flows based
on certain assumptions, such as the restoration costs
based on quotations.

5. TEMFEFT @
EHFREMNEIERE (&)

(c)

(@)

(e

REHB B T 1R

7R ER B4R PR W B I HL At FE WK 2
AR ERE 2 FHE (B RS EHAR
A EEBE N B E R @ R R A2 %)
ARBRELRERSE - —BF4
EERIBEN KB BRRAARTEA AR
T EIRE - BIE RRME - FRIR
AR T Z(E L A A (AR - B
ERERMGHAZER  AZER
REFEIGHARBZFERNZE
o B B EL A 8 W ek BRTE B DA B R
R - EEBANBBARRLE
b SEREFERNEEN TR - AR
B2 RIEHRINEE -

REERALZ B 76 (15

RETRAEATNERETRE
B - AEBREHE ¢ ()T HERAE
FENRNGERIRGNEENS
% (B ERAANEAERS ME
RARRESRERFIRE : (AF

HESRERARERABENTR
bt BER LRSS RERARSE
RAEENNEFR : RVEER
B B B BOR BR A H -

HWELERRER

AEEE TG MERBRRE
MR AEEBEEEMEMmE
EWMERHZIRE - MELREEE
EREBRER  DEAMGR
HEMEEZSARASME LM
BER - ERERES TERR (PINE
RIREEAEIENA) ERFRFRER

=
= °

Annual Report 2014
—E-MEFR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #{Z — T —MF+_A=+—HIEFE
5. KEY ESTIMATES (Continued) 5. FE@#t @

AT T REMNEBZRR (&)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

()

Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities except certain trade receivables of
subsidiaries denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) while its
functional currency is HK$. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
WEERERERER QA

(6)

()

P 1%

EEMGHEERRFEZELELRH
i - IR 5 M EHNREBIEE
ERBEEBBIETERE - WE X
EFEHZ RRRIBEREYGCE
SRTRE - AABEZRR ST EE
IR E B 2 TS Bt SR A P S35
A o

HRETERZRRHABERRZ
EEMEBHEAENEEERH/ARRK
F& BRI )4 7 5 1R B I B AT 215 M 3L
SERE R E R EERBIAERE T
NHER - ERERZERUEEL
A o

B 7% 3 B B T

AEENEHAXZZ R ERR

R - ERER -

: SN
MBE &R KR E

B o AREEMBERERERT IR
BTSRRI - WS REFEREL A
SEWMBREANBETNTZE -

(a)

S LR

AEBNIMNERBED - BTIAR
HEABOEBRS - BERAFEE
ZUAEEERNINGEERHE
BRISBARMNE TRUERAAR
B IARE]DFHE - MEIEEEHN
BT o AEBEBRR AL BMBLIMNER
5 BERBBERIINGH MK
R - AEBBEIEEINERR -
W7 6 B B B B B K SN

LA
i

g o
2



6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables,
amounts due from joint ventures, cash and bank balances
and deposits included in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial
assets.

In respect of hotel operations, the Group has no
concentration of credit risk in view of its large number of
customers. It has policies in place to ensure that sale of
rooms to corporate customers are made to customers with
an appropriate credit history. Sales to walk-in customers
are made via credit cards or cash.

In respect of provision of hotel consultancy services for the
year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has a
concentration of credit risk in view of that all the trade
debtors arose from one customer. The Group requests
progress payments from customers in accordance with the
milestones of the hotel consultancy agreements.

Amounts due from joint ventures are closely monitored by
the directors.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Rental deposits are mainly paid to seven (2013: seven)
domestic private entities who are currently leasing the office
and hotel premises to the Group. Other receivables primarily
represent the amounts due from third and related parties
which have long business relationship with the Group.
Taking into consideration settlements subsequent to year
end, management does not consider there is recoverability
issue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A R R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z -

—OEF—A=t—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

6. UKEKRER #)

(c) Liquidity risk (c) REBEL£RAR
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and REBZHREATEHNERRRFERTE
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains HRSESEXR  UBRERFTE
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements RewEE  NWENESBHERRAR
in the short and longer term. FESHK o
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities is as rEEEBABRZIBBE TN
follows: ™
Lessthan  Between 1 Between 2 Over
1year and2years and5 years 5 years Total
- -5EME WERIE BBLE k]
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
At 31 December 2014 R=B-mE+=A=t-8
Trade and other payables JEAT R 3R E B A 5B 14,934,803 = = - 14,934,803
Finance lease payables ERRERETE 441,402 157,455 - - 598,857
15,376,205 157,455 - - 15,533,660
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=E+-A=1-H
Trade and other payables FERERRE A FE 8,142,842 = = - 8142842
Finance lease payables ENBERERE 377,892 377,892 157,455 = 913,239
8,520,734 377,892 157,455 - 9,056,081
(d) Interest rate risk (d) F == B

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities except for finance lease payables, the Group’s
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s finance lease payables bear interests at fixed
interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest
rate risks.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBEMREE @

(e) Categories of financial instruments ) EMIAZSE
2014 2013
—E—F —F—=
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
Financial assets: SREE :
Loans and receivables (including B R EWFRIE
bank and cash balances) (BIERITRRESESR) 39,992,689 32,203,429
Financial liabilities: SRBE:
Financial liabilities at amortised costs &tk N HE A
cRiBE 14,934,803 8,142,842

(f) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

(H 2DFE

RAMBARNKMINRAEE S
REERTBAERMNEDERR
EENAFERS °

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, there were no assets R-E—NER—T—=F+_

and liabilities that were measured at fair value. =+t—H BEESENEER
NFEFE -
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. REHSIER

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

—  Hotel operations (the sales of hotel membership cards, hotel
management services income and rental income on a
subleased premise are included in the hotel operation
segment)

—  Provision of hotel consultancy services

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 4 to the financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include interest income, finance costs,
share-based payment expenses, auditor’s remuneration and legal
and professional fee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A R R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

7.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

The segment information for the reportable segments for the year

HE R @)

FA - AIRZRDEHDIERFINGMT

is as follows:
Provision
of hotel
Hotel consultancy
operations services Total
REEE
EIEEE B8 78 AR 7% Hzm
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BIT BT
For the year ended BE-_Z—0OF
31 December 2014 +TZA=+—HLEE
Revenue from external customers KRB INRE P 7 W zs 29,700,841 - 29,700,841
Segment loss 5 EBIE1E (27,865,563) - (27,865,563)
Depreciation of property, plant M - BERZETE
and equipment 7,255,616 — 7,255,616
Amortisation of prepaid operating 8 {- 4% 4 70 & #k 8
lease 865,788 — 865,788
Provision for impairment of JE W BR ORI (B 1 1
trade receivables 4,423,101 - 4,423,101
For the year ended BE-E2-—=F
31 December 2013 +ZA=+—BLFE
Revenue from external customers 2R B /NREF 2 Wz 33,412,313 24,556,593 57,968,906
Segment (loss)/profit 288 (E518) /57 (5,029,275) 16,493,842 11,464,567
Depreciation of property, plant Y BENEETE
and equipment 6,524,174 865,759 7,389,933
Amortisation of prepaid operating 8- 4% 4 FH & # 45
lease 864,587 — 864,587
Provision for/(reversal of) JE s B TR (E B (BEm)
impairment of trade receivables 913,154 (1,500,000) (586,846)

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
A reconciliation of segment results to loss before income tax is S EP AR ELRR PTG AN A BT 18 2 S AR E 51 4D
provided as follows: DK
2014 2013
—F-mF —
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Total (loss)/profit of reportable segments A 23R % &6 (E18)
e ikt (27,865,563) 11,464,567
Unallocated corporate Aol dx
expenses, net (Note) FsO%ER (5D (12,791,313) (10,217,873)
Finance income BE WA 56,937 74,298
Finance cost Bl & P AR (448,789) (848,630)
Impairment of interests in joint ventures ~ RA& & Q8 2 ERIRIE (6,797,484) =
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEERRIEE (12,331,951) (3,765,796)
Loss before income tax B P15 %1 Al E5 18 (60,178,163) (3,293,434)
Note: B 5T

Unallocated corporate expenses mainly represent share-based payment
expenses, auditor’s remuneration and legal and professional fee.

Revenue from major customers:

All revenue was derived from external customers in the PRC and
Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
No revenue derived from one customer represent 10% or more
of the revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014. Revenue of HK$21,382,489 was derived from two external
customers for the year ended 31 December 2013. A summary
of revenue earned from each of these major external customers
is set out below.

R FLR RIS T 248 UMD REHE 2 (55
X RBEOMEREEREXEM -

REFEFF2WE :

REE-_ZT—NFER_FT—=F+-A=
+—HIFE  FrEREIREFEEE
BHINREE - WEA—ZRFELEMK
HEAREEREE_E—NE+_A=+
—HIEFEERFN10%A L - HE-T—
=F+_A=+—HILFE WK%
21,382,489 TLREMBINREF  TX
IR E LS EBIREF AU S5

= °

2014 2013

—E-mF —E-=F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Provision of hotel consultancy B2 A0 5 B R R 75 A 9 2B

services segment

Customer 1 = - 9,306,989

Customer 2 ey - 12,075,500

- 21,382,489

UREERFRNIEREEERE (TEE
RIEFIIRE EE) 7 Bl A1,082, 74278 7L (ZF
— =4 : 2,953,656/57T) & 119,347,931/5
T (=B —=14F : 147,743,296/8TT) °

The total of non-current assets other than deferred tax assets
located in Hong Kong and the PRC were HK$1,032,742 (2013:
HK$2,9583,656) and HK$119,347,931 (2013: HK$147,743,296),
respectively.

Annual Report 2014
—E-NEFEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A R R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(Continued)

Breakdown of revenue from all activities is as follows:

KREPEER ()

FBEESWEBAEINAT -

2014 2013

—ZT—F —E—=F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Hotel consultancy services B I A S AR 75 - 24,556,593
Sales from hotel operations — B G & B HERE
hotel room rental, hotel management BEEEES

services income and B 5 BRI WA K

conference room rental SZEHE 24,044,532 28,328,788

Management fee income BEEBWRA 2,806,312 2,335,769

Rental income on a sub-leased premise DY EA S WA 2,524,776 2,501,438

Sales of hotel membership cards BESEREE 325,221 246,318

29,700,841 57,968,906

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8.

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

EERAAX (BEESEHMH)

2014 2013

—E—NF —ZT—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries, wages and allowances e TENER 11,254,228 12,134,677
Pension obligations RIKEEH 1,349,844 1,448,030
Share-based payment expenses AR BER 2 A - 2,892,000
Other benefits H &R 549,079 352,479
13,153,151 16,827,186
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of each director were as follows:

9. EEHM

BESZHMHIINT

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits schemes
Fees in kind contribution Total
§é BHR Bifke
He ENEF ATEMR bk
Notes HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z-m%
TZA=t+-BLEE
Executive directors: YTES:
Fong Man Kelvin (Chairman) FX(ER) - 918,000 15,000 933,000
Fong Nga Peggy BER - 387,000 15,000 402,000
Yue Kwai Wa Ken REE (a) 58,065 - 1,500 59,565
Yip Chung Wai David EBE (a) 58,065 - 1,500 59,565
Mak Yiu Cho EEA (b) 20,500 - - 20,500
Law Fei Shing BRI (b) 20,500 - - 20,500
Non-executive director: FHTES:
De Weyer Daniel Ludovicus Joannes L © 63,140 - - 63,140
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTES
Wong Sui Chi Frankie by 94,600 - - 94,600
Wong Hak Kun Jerry AR 94,600 - - 94,600
Frostick Stephen William Frostick Stephen William (d) 94,600 - - 94,600
Liu Cheng Zhong Bl (d) 94,600 - - 94,600
598,670 1,305,000 33,000 1,936,670
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

9. EEFHFM »

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits schemes
Fees inkind  contribution Total
e 2R BHhE
e ENEF AR BE
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Year ended 31 December 2013 HzZ-Z-=¢%¢
+-A=t-BLEE
Executive directors: HTES !
Fong Man Kelvin (Chairman) FX (£E) - 855,000 15,000 870,000
Fong Nga Peggy E) - 360,000 15,000 375,000
Non-executive director: FHTES:
De Weyer Daniel Ludovicus Joannes FEL © 88,000 - = 88,000
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTES :
Wong Sui Chi Frankie Hinfd; 88,000 - = 88,000
Tam Kwok Ming Banny BB ) 59,906 - - 59,906
Tsoi Wing Sum BAR (d) 81,837 = = 81,837
Wong Hak Kun Jerry Eng 88,000 - - 88,000
Frostick Stephen William Frostick Stephen William (d) 6,507 - - 6,507
Liu Cheng Zhong 2% (d) 6,507 - - 6,507
418,757 1,215,000 30,000 1,663,757
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 9.

Note:

(@  On 4 July 2014, Yue Kwai Wa Ken and Yip Chung Wai David were
appointed as the executive directors of the Group. On 18
November 2014, Yue Kwai Wa Ken and Yip Chung Wai David
resigned as executive directors of the Group.

(b)  On 19 November 2014, Mak Yiu Cho and Law Fei Shing were
appointed as executive directors of the Group.

()  On 3 September 2014, De Weyer Daniel Ludovicus Joannes
resigned as non-executive director of the Group.

(d)  On 4 December 2013, Tsoi Wing Sum resigned as independent
non-executive director. On the same date, Frostick Stephen William
and Liu Cheng Zhong were appointed as independent non-
executive directors of the Group.

(e)  On 4 September 2013, Tam Kwok Ming Banny resigned as
independent non-executive director of the Group.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year included two (2013: one) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2013: four) individuals
are set out below:

EEHFM »)

@ R-Z—NELANHE REFERER
BEREALEERTES - RN _T—
mE+—A+NA\R - REFZERERER
EAEBEATES -

) MZZT-—OF+—A+NH - ZRER
EEREZERAEENTES -

© R-ZE-—mOFAA=H  MECEER
SESERITES -

d RZTE—=F+_AWmA  BLEHKRET
BIEWMITES - A B - Frostick
Stephen William & 2I#& B EZE AR E
BB IERITES o

© MN-E-—=FNANA BEAREIA
SEBVIFNITES -

FA - ESFHELEAEBREUEABESIE
RMAREE 2 RS HERBERMAE -

(b) EEEZEHFAL

RAFE  AEBRAERSHAL
BEMB(ZE—=F: —%)E
T HMEREXEINZAMFR
BR o Hp=% (ZF—=%F : @O®R)
BEANMSEIMT

2014 2013

—E—-NF —E—=F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Salaries, wages and allowances e L& NERL 1,545,000 2,077,561
Pension obligations RINEE 30,000 41,030
Share-based payment expenses AR BER 2 MR X - 1,084,500
1,575,000 3,203,091
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A R R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following band:

(b)

9. EEHM &
AEBBEHFAL (@)

NFOTBEAZME

Number of individuals

AE
2014 2013
—E—mEF —E—=4F
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% L 21,000,000 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 70 £2,000,000% 7T - 1
3 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the highest paid individuals of the Group as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

FA - AREESHALHREEREEYK
BEAMEERSMARKE 2 B HER
BERRAEE -

loss of office.
10. OTHER INCOME 10. HAlr A
2014 2013
—ZE—-NF —FT—=%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale LEAHEESRHEE
financial assets Z Wz - 54,976
Compensation for early termination of IR IEFR A
lease (Note 13) 2 (M5E13) - 877,303
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 Yz 58 68,012 1,040,800
Interest income on non-current rental RESEK AT ERIERS)
deposits carried at amortised cost HEZER B WA 56,346 73,667
Bank interest income RITHBHA 592 631
Others HAD 35,045 7,445
159,995 2,054,822
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11. FINANCE COSTS

11. BME KX

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERASTAT
2014 2013
—2-mEF —F—=4
HK$ HKS$
BT PETT
Finance cost on asset retirement e A EEIRERS
obligations ) Bl & A AR 180,912 173,407
Finance cost on finance lease liabilities BEREEFENRERAE 39,033 53,962
Interest on overdue payments 8 ER 5 R e 1 B 3,844 —
Finance cost on convertible notes Al A AR 2R R B A A AR - 3,971,164
Interest on other loan wholly repayable —FREIEEN
within one year HEHF 2 900,000 —
1,123,789 4,198,533
Less: amount capitalised as construction i : B4t BIEZE T2
in progress (Note 16) 2 &% (fFsE16) (675,000) (3,349,903)
448,789 848,630
12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES 12. FRSH (&) BAxX
2014 2013
—F-mEF —F=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BVERRR IE — BB ISR
Provision for the year FREE - 1,352,468
Over-provision in prior years VAR 4F [E B8 4l (8,710,908) —
(8,710,908) 1,352,468
Current tax — PRC BUEARIIE — R
Provision for the year FARE 483,880 2,388,118
Deferred income tax (Note 19) EIERTSH (FE19) (407,650) 219,757
(8,634,678) 3,960,343

The Group is not subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5%
(2013:16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

AEERFHEHERRBRELES ([RE
REES]) BABMBIEA -

RAFEERN  BAMNEHIEHE16.5%
(ZZT—=%F : 16.5%) BLIEFHFERRTL ) A
LB -
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e B S R R M A
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES (Continved) 12. Fi8% GE®) B X @

RAREEZER - PR ERSHRIEHE25%
(ZZE— =4 : 25%) {EH &4 -

The PRC corporate income tax is provided at the rate of 25%
(2013: 25%) for the year.

PS8 7 S B R B BTAE M SR IA B A IR & B
BEAORERER 2R HRETIMT -

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of profit before tax multiplied by tax rates applicable to

profit or loss in the respective countries is as follows:

2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before taxation M F5 A B 18 (60,178,163) (3,293,434)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates EEBHABERMIBERZ
applicable to profits or loss in the BRANE R ERGTE
respective countries FOFSTRE (11,865,521) 645,923
Tax effect of expenses that are EEN G-
not deductible 5,046,611 2,356,155
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERTIAE BB
Mz 2 3,742,776 336,909
Tax effect of income that is not taxable — #EZE:RFU A KT RS2 (3,993) —
Tax effect of impairment of interests in REBRR ZERRBIE
joint ventures R TS & 1,121,584 —
Tax effect of share of results of DEEBERREE
joint ventures B RS s & 2,034,773 621,356
Over-provision in prior years VAR [E B EE B & (8,710,908) =
Income tax (credit)/expense FTis®i %), FAx (8,634,678) 3,960,343
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13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. FREE

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) RNEE R FREHE TR, GEA) T5
the following: HE £75 :
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment FEU BR R BB,
of trade receivables (#mE) 4,423,101 (586,846)
Auditor’s remuneration 2% E0RD B & 1,200,000 2,129,000
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEREEITE
equipment 7,255,616 7,389,933
Impairment on interests in joint ventures KA & QA Al Z EBE 6,797,484 —
Minimum lease payment under mEHEREBELR
operating lease 17,974,662 14,822,036
Loss on disposal of property, plant, and ~ H &% - BE K& &E
equipment (Note) 2 518 (M 5E) 5,167,969 2,276,985
Note: MizE -
During the year, construction in progress of HK$4,376,500 was written FR - AARIEFAEMELEE @ MEERTRE
off as a result of the termination of developments of two hotels. 4,376,500/ 7T °
During the year ended 31 December 2013, as a result of early termination REBE-T—=F+_A=1+—HLEFE ' H
of a lease contract by the landlord, the Group closed down one operating REFRANKERY - AEEBE—FHEEF
budget hotel and wrote off property, plant and equipment of HK$985,024 HAOERNEE - ALt B ilEEREE 5985,024
in this regard. The Group has recorded a compensation of early BILZE - BER&E AEEEKEEE
termination of HK$877,303 (Note 10) from the landlord. Moreover, the BIBATAR L2 2 58 877,303 T (B 7
Group relocated a hotel under construction to a new site and therefore 10) o Wb - REBEH—HEEF BERE
the related construction in progress of HK$1,253,290 was written off. ZEHFHE - Atk - 1,253,290/ TR ARRIER T

T2 BB o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A R R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

14. DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment
of any dividend for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

15. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$51,543,485 (2013: HK$7,253,777) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 234,744,549 (2013:
181,579,453) in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

There was no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the
Company'’s outstanding share options for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the exercise of the
Group’s outstanding convertible bonds would be anti-
dilutive and there was no dilutive potential ordinary shares
for the Company’s outstanding share options. Accordingly,
the diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per share
for both years.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
WEERERERER QA

14. RE

REBEZE-_T-—NFR-_"FT—=F+_A=
+—BHLEFE  ARAEEMEZE N
RGNS

15. BREE

(a)

(b)

EXBRER

AARHEE ABGERESREEDN
AEDERARGEEAEBEFTA
B8 4951,543,4858 L (—F —=
F 17,253,777 L) RFERNBE ETT
TS AR INRE T 19 8R234,744,5490%
—T— =4 :181,579,453%) °

BEERER

FA - NRRIERTTRMEREIL &

REBEZE—_ZE—=F+_A=+—H
WEFE - (TEAEEB BT RK
BEHFekEE  BARABEEITH
BERETESEEEELER - B
- RREHR - #ETREEER
AEREE— -



16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - MERRE

Leasehold Furniture

improve- and Office Motor Construction
ments fixtures equipments vehicles in progress Total
HENERE HRRRE BLZERE "E EEIR 5
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
COST: XA
1 January 2013 WZZE—=F—F—H 44484874 7972215 1,061,332  2851,960 15,260,852 71,631,233
Additions RE 4136 18,717 1,626 - 25326,725 25,351,204
Disposal HE (4,736,425)  (1,621,231) (38,156)  (158,671)  (1,253,290)  (7,807,779)
Reclassification ENNH (2,707) - 2,707 - - -
Exchange realignment RIS 1,242,383 225,503 32,041 8,570 581,889 2,090,386
At 31 December 2013 and RZB-=%
1 January 2014 +ZA=+-Bk
“E-WE-A—H 40992261 6595204 1,059,550 2,701,859 39,916,176 91,265,050
Additions AE 21,951 29,589 307,193 — 36,091,539 36,450,272
Write off ik (1,445,292) — — — (43765000 (5,821,792)
Transfer ELY/ 13,791,230 - - —  (18,791,230) -
Exchange realignment RIS (138,113) (23,155) (3,706) (1,012) (9,872 (175,858
At 31 December 2014 R-E-IE

tTZA=t-H 53,222,037 6,601,638 1,363,037 2,700,847 57,830,113 121,717,672

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION: ZitHE

1 January 2013 W=Z-=F—F—H 25911480 7,384,365 822,772 766,149 — 34,884,766
Charge for the year FRHE 6,207,945 506,049 137,055 538,884 - 7,389,933
Eliminated on disposals SR (3,788,757)  (1,592,660) (29,370) (1) - (5410,788)
Exchange realignment BEHAE 816,726 214,596 26,575 2,815 - 1,060,712

At 31 December 2013 and RZZ-=F
1 January 2014 TZA=+-BR

“Z-ME-F—H 29,147,394 6,512,350 957,082 1,307,847 — 37,924,623
Charge for the year FRER 6,614,050 38,475 80,074 523,017 - 7255616
Eliminated on written off e (653,823) - - - - (653,828)
Exchange realignment EHAE (94,982) (22,939) (3,279) (391) = (121,585)
At 31 December 2014 R-E-IE
+t-A=t-H 35,012,639 6,527,802 1,033,827 1,830,473 — 44,404,831
CARRYING AMOUNTS: REE:

At 31 December 2014 R-E-W%
+=B=t+-H 18,209,398 73,746 329,210 870,374 57,830,113 77,312,841

At 31 December 2013 N
—A 11,844,867 82,854 102,518 1,394,012 39,916,176 53,340,427
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A R R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BMEKRX®E @)

(Continued)
During the year, the Group had capitalised borrowing costs FN - AKEEREERBEENMEER
amounting to HK$675,000 (2013: HK$3,349,903) (Note 11) on FX78675,0007% 7T (ZZF —=4F : 3,349,903
qualifying assets. o) (HEE11) o
The Group leases a motor vehicle under non-cancellable finance AREERBENAIEEE R E A A — 7
leases (Note 24). The lease term is 5 years. Motor vehicle include = (fff3F24) - HAASF - NEEEAK
the following amounts where the Group is a lessee under finance AARBEBEROEANTEBEATS
leases: #
2014 2013
—ZE-mF —ET—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cost — capitalised finance leases A — BE&ERE
ZRERE 1,661,051 1,661,051
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (1,024,315) (692,105)
636,736 968,946

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

17. ig1%t§klﬁl~ Be R HMRERR
By

RECEIVABLES
2014 2013
—E-mF —ZT—=
Notes HK$ HK$
Ff 5 BT T
Prepayments A RE
Property, plant and equipment M - BREREE (a) 24,169,069 59,969,169
Prepaid operating lease ENEEHEE (b) 10,689,458 11,393,935
Others EHh 1,403,949 981,418
36,262,476 72,344,522
Deposits B
Rental deposits HE®R® 2,243,510 1,425,273
Other receivables H {th f& WK E 25,570,153 897,146
Total prepayments, deposits ERRE  Zek
and other receivables H b e Y FRIE A 58 64,076,139 74,666,941
The amounts of prepayments, TENFIE  ZeREMmE
deposits and other receivables WHRIBSBEIMAT :
are analysed as follows:
Non-current portion IER B 2
Prepayments for property, plant ~ #1% « BE KR EB N FE
and equipment 24,169,069 59,969,169
Rental deposits HEZS 2,243,510 1,425,273
Prepaid operating lease BREEHRE 9,823,653 10,529,348
36,236,232 71,923,790
Current portion BN o
Prepayments TR RIE 1,403,949 981,418
Prepaid operating lease ENEEHEE 865,805 864,587
Other receivables H fh & W KT8 25,570,153 897,146
27,839,907 2,743,151
64,076,139 74,666,941
Note B 5
(@)  These represented payments for construction costs for new office (a) BEFTPELYEE REH IR AR IRFE AL E
premise and budget hotels planned to be opened in the future. ABE R R AT SR FRIE ©
(b)  The balance primarily represented the non-current portion of the b) ZEHBFEERRPEABENEAES

operating lease payment paid to an independent third party in
respect of the rental of a hotel premise in the PRC for a lease term

of 15 years till 30 June 2026.

MHEz—ZT A A=1+H1E+H
F)A—ZBIF = NORLHEN
K2 IEBNERER S o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REERAIZHE#H
2014 2013
—F-mF —
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
Unlisted investments in Hong Kong: REBKIELTIRE -
Share of net assets fEihEEFE 6,831,600 18,844,088
Goodwill B 6,797,484 6,588,647
13,629,084 25,432,735
Impairment losses BUEE R (6,797,484) =
6,831,600 25,432,735
Notes: FiaE
(a) The cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures includes (a8 MREERARZIELEMEEXNABERR
shareholder’s loans of HK$32,254,689 (2013: HK$31,732,600) to HERIRZAEEEMX TAERRHNRK
joint ventures for establishment of two hotels in the PRC. The HE 332,254,689 (=T — =4 :
Group will not demand for the repayment of the shareholder’s 31,732,600/87T) ° AEEES EREE
loans, and accordingly, these loans are treated as capital injection ZRRER  AUZEERERAERE
by the Group into joint ventures. These loans are denominated in BHABERAZEE - ZEEHRABT
HKS$, unsecured and non-interest bearing. FHE REERAREE -
(b)  Details of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 December 2014 are as b) R=ZT—WF+=-—A=+—H K£EH
follows: REERRINFBAT :
Percentage of
Place of ownership Principal
Name incorporation Issued share capital interest activities
=g & 1 1t B ERITRAE EEAEZEDL FTEEK
Sanya Welcomeinn Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 60% Investment
Waterfront Tourism holding and
Limited (“Waterfront”) hotel operation
= DR B KFIR B 2% T AR 60% BEER R
BRAA ([KE] & i
Sanya Welcomeinn Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 60% Investment
Jinhua Tourism holding and
Limited (“dinhua”) hotel operation
=h R RERE BA 2B T E WA 60% EER R

BERAA ([#E])

(c) The following tables show information of Waterfront and Jinhua.
These joint ventures are accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method. The summarised financial
information presented is based on the HKFRS financial statements
of the joint ventures.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 18. REERTIZHER &)

Summarised statement of financial position MR RREE
Waterfront Jinhua
K& R
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ME “E-=F —E-QmE “E-=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 31 December: R+t=B=t+-H:
Non-current assets FRBEE 12,675,454 19,437,381 10,230,188 17,921,285
Current assets mEEE 1,057,258 887,807 998,299 3,737
Current liabilities nBaE (7,818,712) (6,245,899) (5,756,487) (597,504)
Net assets BEFE 5,914,000 14,079,295 5,472,000 17,327,518
Group’s share of net assets REEEGEETE 3,548,400 8,447,577 3,283,200 10,396,511
Goodwill EES 3,917,072 3,897,071 2,880,412 2,691,576
1,465,472 12,344,648 6,163,612 13,088,087
Impairment losses REES (3,917,072 - (2,880,412) -
Carrying amount of interests EnEnE 3,548,400 12,344,648 3,283,200 13,088,087
Cash and cash equivalents THEERNRE
included in current assets RREEED 269,915 240,915 69,969 2,835
Current financial liabilities THABTNTRESEE
(excluding trade and other BE(PRERAER
payables and provisions) T E A S FRIE A
included in current liabilities LR - = = -
Non-current financial liabilities ERBARTNERE
(excluding trade and other SREE(TREEN
payables and provisions) RRREMERTA
included in non-current A&
liabilities - = - =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B S R R M A
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 18. REERTIZHER &)

Summarised statement of profit or loss and other WERREMEZEBARBEE
comprehensive income
Waterfront Jinhua
XE #z
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE “5-z% “3-QE “5-z%
HKS HKS HK$ HKS
BT B BT BT
Year ended 31 December: BET-R=1-HLEE:
Revenue WA 7,138,448 1,799,188 1,028,746 -
Depreciation and amortisation MEREE (3,046,443) (1,512,909) (1,040,840) =
Impaiment of property, plant and equipment 1%~ BE R &R E (3,897,886) - (5,997,991) -
Interest income FEHA 748 108 - -
Interest expense fEF% - = = -
Income tax expense FEHRE - = = -
Loss from continuing BELEXH
operations BE (6,230,646) 16.204,47) (12,322,606) (15,450)
Other comprehensive loss Eh2EEE 15,353 (56,404) (5,003) =
Total comprehensive loss GABREE (8,215,293) (6,260,876) (12,327,609) (15,450)
Dividends received from HAB AN
joint ventures LIRE - - - -

The Directors reviewed the joint ventures’ operations and financial
positions as at 31 December 2014 based on fair value calculation.
A discount rate of 20.30% was applied on projected cash flow
for fair value calculation. Due to the unsatisfactory operating
performance, there was a decrease in the recoverable amount
from fair value calculation. Accordingly, for the year ended 31
December 2014, an impairment loss of HK$6,797,484 (2013:
Nil) was provided for the Group’s interests in the joint ventures.

As at 31 December 2014, the bank and cash balances of the
Group’s joint ventures in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted
to HK$331,163 (2013: HK$238,363). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
WEERERERER QA

EERBEAFENEEMNEERFTNRE
—ME+=-A=+—H2EERHBE
Moo AFENERBRHE S REHEA
20.30%MEEIRE - HREERETEA
B AFEFEFHTRKSELERET
e Fith REBEE-_Z—ME+_-_A=1
—HILFE  ERAEEREERRZHE
FHEHRRERE1E6,797 4848 L (ZE—=
F ) o

R-E—NE+_A=+—H  AEEF
BEEBRRUARBEMNRITERS L
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19. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS EEFIEHEE

TXRAEERANEIREERREE °

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised by
the Group.

Accelerated
tax

depreciation Provisions Total
EIZHRIENE B HEE
HKS HK$ HK$
I BT 7T
At 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=%F—HF—H 341,924 1,110,299 1,452,223
Debited to profit or loss FAMBE Bz (iE12)
for the year (note 12) (183,165) (86,592) (219,757)
Exchange differences e N E% 8,376 43,731 52,107
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=%
1 January 2014 +—A=+—HEK
R-—ZE—mFE—H—H 167,135 1,117,438 1,284,573
Debited to profit or loss FRME B (HFE12)
for the year (note 12) 46,846 360,804 407,650
Exchange differences ) (380) (3,459) (3,839)
At 31 December 2014 R_ZT—MF
+=—A=+—8H 213,601 1,474,783 1,688,384

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. As of 31 December
2014, the Group does not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$4,749,202 (2013: HK$1,006,425) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$22,638,143 (2013: HK$6,099,546) that can
be carried forward against taxable income. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$2,982,083 (2013:
HK$nil) that will expire in 2019. Other tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries and joint ventures for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised is HK$761,775 (2013: HK$1,231,959).
No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the timing of reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

fim 78 BARLTS F 25 1] BE B R K 85 R SR IE AR T
mA IR - BlestATAE 2 B8 EIE R
BEREMREE RN-_ZE—NE+_-_AF=
+—8 - ANEE IR ] (e KR
EBUA 2 E1822,638,1438 T (— & —
=4 : 6,099,546/ 70) MERIRILEFTSTHE
E4,749,202F L (ZF —=F :
1,006,425%7T) ° AERIIEEEBEH
R=—ZT—HhFE|#22,082,0838 7L (=F
—=F : TE) ZEE - EtFIEEE
AR HAR B R A o

REREHR - MBARKREBERAREADIK
BN AAEREEREEENTREEE
BER761, 7758 L (ZF —=F :
1,231,959/ 7T) © FFNZNER B A] LAYE il &
B = B O MR - BZ=8Ra Big
RAJRE NS RED - BRF AR ph bl = ERER
afE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B S R R M A
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —ZT—N&+_-_A=+—HIFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. FEWBR X

The majority of the Group’s revenue from hotel operations are
made via credit cards or cash. Hotel rooms are rented to
corporate customers with an appropriate credit history on credit
terms of 30 days. For hotel consultancy services, the Group offers
credit terms to external customers of 60 days upon acceptance
of services by the customers. As at 31 December 2014, the
Group has made provision for impairment of trade receivables of
HK$4,423,101 (2013: HK$586,846). Trade receivables of
HK$7,561,592 (2013: HK$10,185,469) were past due but not
impaired. Management considered that no recoverability problem
on these trade balances as a result of subsequent settlement

AEBHEE L BREEBAEARRIR
SHE c AEBABRESBEEREND
¥RFRE=TARNBEREHERSE
H o BUBEBERRBE M E © AEERIND
BEEIRBEAZERFRESTXD
EEH R_Z—NWF+=-_A=+—8

AEEEEH EWERERREREB
4,423,101 (ZE— =4 : 586, 846}%
TT) ° FEURERFR7,561,5928 T (—E—=
F m1%4w%nﬂeﬁ%ﬁ1ﬂﬂ
E-TEERE BREEAFREEHE

WE|ER i EUE B - B EER PR
ERIE R BIZK e - M FE HEH
B LA 121 3 488 i L

received up to the date of this report and the agreement of the
revised repayment schedule with certain trade debtors.

2014 2013

—EF-mF —
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables JE g BR 53R 12,798,345 10,929,589
Impairment EE (5,056,412) (634,115)
7,741,933 10,295,474

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows: ZERYERFZREROITAT

2014 2013

—E-mEF —T—=F

HK$ HK$

BT B TT

Neither past due nor impaired fapth) oK) 180,341 110,005
0-30 days past due #HI0E 30K 505,878 673,981
31-60 days past due # #1831 260K 226,905 237,934
61-90 days past due # #1612 90K 212,248 481,524
91-120 days past due BHI1 = 120K 554,225 222,436
121-365 days past due #BHI1212365K 2,415,042 8,569,594
Over 365 days past due 1) HA R 18 365K 3,647,294 -
7,561,592 10,185,469

7,741,933 10,295,474

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

21.

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables during the year are as follows:

20. EWERR (&)

FRARKEFTRERBEZEESMT :

2014 2013

—E-mEF —T—=F

HK$ HK$

BT AT

At 1 January Rn—HA—H 634,115 1,500,000
Exchange realignment ME W S (804) -
Provision for the year F NS 4,423,101 913,154
Amounts written off i 5H & 58 - (279,039)
Reversal of provision for impairment B BRI E R - (1,500,000)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—8”H 5,056,412 634,115

The reversal of provision for impairment has been included in
“other operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES

Amounts due from joint ventures as at 31 December 2014 are
interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. Amounts are
denominated in RMB.

Amounts due from joint ventures as at 31 December 2013 were
interest-free, unsecured and repayable by July 2014. Amounts
were denominated in RMB.

21.

BMERBRLDEAGRERERTE
=] -

BWEERTRE

RZZB-—ME+-A=+—8 EBKEE
ARREBER/RE - BIERMRERESR -
FZRBEAARKEGE -

RZB—=F+"A=+—8 EBKEE
ARRBER/RE - BERNEAR TN
FLAREE - ZARBUARKEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE
22. PROVISION FOR ASSET RETIREMENT 22 RBEEEFRBE

Under the terms of the tenancy agreements signed with landlords, BEEEFFITNHERZER - AEE
the Group shall vacate and re-instate the leased hotel premises RN\ ZE F AR EE A 8 B & i
at the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant tenancy A RERATEASE L EERAERE
agreements in 8 to 10 years. Provision is therefore made for the P o B B TR HAE A 80R R AR DA &
best estimate of the expected reinstatement costs to be incurred. AR E TR - SREEEEREE

Movements of provision for asset retirement are as follows: REBHIMT
2014 2013
—F-mEF —F=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 3,739,945 3,457,087
Finance cost on asset retirement HwEEEEEREREBLN
obligations (Note 11) B A A (BT aE11) 180,912 173,407
Exchange differences PE 5 A= R (13,027) 109,451
At 31 December R+—A=+—H” 3,907,830 3,739,945
Less: non-current portion B FEBNEREE (1,485,747) (1,440,769)
Current portion BN EAEE 2 2,422,083 2,299,176
23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ENERARHEMENTKIER
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
HK$ HKS$
BT AT
Trade payables FE T BR X 4,311,517 3,072,392
Accruals and other payables fEETIE B R E B FRIE 17,385,161 13,552,813
21,696,678 16,625,205
The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: FERBRROERRSITHAT ¢
2014 2013
= Lk —E-=F
HK$ HKS$
BT AT
0-30 days 0E 30K 1,595,674 1,151,344
31-60 days 31 260K 1,336,146 706,732
61-90 days 612 90K 679,726 588,059
Over 90 days HBI0K 699,971 626,257
4,311,517 3,072,392

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Accruals and other payables are analysed as follows:

23

- BEHRFAREMESRE @

FEETIR B REMBENRIEANEHIINT

2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
HK$ HK$
BT PETT

Accruals FEETIEE
Accrued staff costs FEET B TR 2,609,497 1,811,239
Accrued audit and professional fee Bt EZREXER 2,866,155 2,910,200
Accrued effective rental payable JEEtERE S EMTE 6,080,987 2,678,463
11,556,639 7,399,902

Other payables H P& {3 7K IE

Other tax payables A FE T 7 I8 3,741,755 3,635,256
Payables to hotel constructors FERB ST A BFKIE 783,520 -
Interest payable FEAS H) B - 1,471,164

Deferred revenue iR I Y 2
— membership fee —gHEEH 297,073 191,242
— customer loyalty programme — BEBHEE 188,702 166,163
Receipt in advance TEM R IE 195,113 191,708
Others HAith 622,359 497,378
5,828,522 6,152,911
Total accruals and other payables EstEE R EMENRIEATE 17,385,161 13,552,813

Annual Report 2014

“E-UFEFR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A R R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

24. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 24, BEABMERERER
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
REREMNR BEEEAREE
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE —E-ZF “E-mE —E-ZF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT B BT BT
Within one year —FR 441,402 377,892 419,560 342,694
In the second to fifth years, “EhF
inclusive (BREEREMEF) 157,455 535,347 155,583 516,251
598,857 913,239 575,143 858,945
Less: Future finance charges B BREBER (23,714) (54,294) - =
Present value of lease HEBERE
obligations 575,143 858,945 575,143 858,945
Less: Amount due for B 1218 A R FEA B
settlement within (RREBBEYR)
12 months (shown
under current liabilities) (419,560) (342,694)
Amount due for settlement 121 B 1% FE 1 5038
after 12 months 155,583 516,251
The average lease term is 5 years (2013: 5 years). At 31 FHMEEMRSF (2T —=5F : 55) - ¥
December 2014, the average effective borrowing rate was 5% —E-NF+A=+—H  FTHEEE
(2013: 5%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates and ENERE%(ZT—=%F : 5%) ° X
thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. All leases RETHBHEE - BEAEERERZ A TE
are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been MERR - IEHENETEER @ WES
entered into for contingent rental payments. At the end of each ARSI FET L EMZHE - REHER
lease term, the Group has the option to purchase the motor KR AEEHEAZRERBEE TS -
vehicle at nominal prices.
All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. FrERENRER SRR ABTEHE
The Group’s finance lease payables are secured by the lessor’s AEBHEMNBRERERE I ALEAS
title to the leased assets. HEEENEBEER -

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. A&

Number of
Shares Amount
R & k-
Notes HK$
B 5 BT
Authorised: JATE ¢
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 FHREEEO0.018 7T
(2013: HK$0.01) each —E—=F:0.0187T)
SRRl
At 1 January 2013, R—ZT—=%—HF—H
31 December 2013, RZE—=%+=ZH=+—H"
1 January 2014 R—E—mW&E—H—H
and 31 December 2014 FZZE—HWFE+=ZA=+—H 780,000,000 7,800,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 BAREEO0.01E T
(2013: HK$0.01) each —ZT—=%:0.01&T)
B 3 3 AR

At 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=%—HF—H 180,000,001 1,800,001

Conversion of convertible notes 4, # A # j Z 4% (a) 36,000,000 360,000

Exercise of share options 1T1E B AR 500,000 5,000

At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F5+=-A=+—H

1 January 2014 PR =—ZF—MNFE—F—H 216,500,001 2,165,001

Exercise of share options TR B R 1,770,000 17,700

Issue of shares upon placing fid & 21T AR (D (b) 43,500,000 435,000

At 31 December 2014 R_ZT—MF+-_A=+—H 261,770,001 2,617,701

Notes: MizE -

(a) The convertible notes was fully converted during 2013, an @ HEUTRAREER_T—=FEEEL
aggregate of 36,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were o BtR A RESRR0.8SEITEITE
issued at a conversion price of HK$0.85 per share. $£36,000,000/% & I EE0.0175 L2 &

AR o

(b)  On 23 July 2014, the Company and Emperor Securities Limited by RZZE—NELA=+=H ' AAQRH
entered into a placing agreement in respect of the placement of REFH (BB BRARBRABELIZE
43,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to independent EHLAFRR0. 797 TR (E S AL & 43,500,000
investors at a price of HK$$0.79 per share. The placement was IR EAREEO.01 8 T BRG] L — 1B A
completed on 12 August 2014 and the premium on the issue of Etm o BER-_ZT—MNFENA+—-H
shares amounting to approximately HK$33,930,000 was credited SERK BT B0 (B 433,930,000/
to the Company’s share premium account. TCET AR R B8N 5 B B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #{Z — T —MF+_A=+—HIEFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 25. R7& (@)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new
debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total debts less cash
and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity (i.e. share capital, share premium, non-controlling
interests, retained profits and other reserves) and includes some
forms of subordinated debts.

During 2014, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2013, was to maintain the gearing ratio of less than 20%. The
gearing ratios at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

AEEEAEENEIRZARRREARHE
REEeE  WRBBLCEABRLRR
TREREAR R -

AEBRZLPIRERBRERSHE - AEH
EREEANERE  WRRBKER R KA
BERBEENE(CMBE - BTHERHL
WHEEAGEE  AEBEFRESHBEREX
- BT - EERD - BAFE
BOREEBALEEENRDET -

AEEREABEFEREAL RKES
BAR - R RSB EFERAFERER
1S - BEFENREERERREME
SEBEYE - HRREAAZIER
(BIREA ~ B (B - FFEiEs - B 7
m N R E A ) K TeREXERR
B R BIETS -

R-Z—NF  AEEHNRKEE_T—=
FHER - B EE B B RBRIFAE20% A
T RZE—WEFR_T—=F+=A=
+—HMEEABLERNOT ¢

2014 2013

—ZT-mF —F=F

HK$ HK$

T BT

Total debt EE4R%E 575,143 858,945
Less: cash and cash equivalents B RS RBREEEYD (2,322,143) (19,585,536)
Net cash & FHE (1,747,000) (18,726,591)
Total equity e EER 134,174,716 150,469,989
Adjusted capital FEEA% E A 132,427,716 131,743,398
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BEMAFABRFERNL X N/A FiE F N/A 73 A

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include employee
and business associate of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 22 June 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of shares
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than ten years from the date of the offer of
the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

26. AR HER 2K

AREBITEE—RBERE B ([%5H
2 EENARAER2EERMIES
MELHAEBEBAE L BB 228 &
B - ZAEIRERSEERARFERE
AEBETREBRH - NtER_F—
—ERAZ T AERL R IEFEBUERE
B BRERB Z10FABR

REBZAEHER K Z REARRITERER
R (NTTEE) BERAR BN E
BTN Z30% - FERAEMB T H&aT
Bz NERER+ A AR AR ER T
ZEREEREABRTBHBAARRRNE R
BETRN1% - ERFE L@ FR2
BREARRRASERRRAME -

RHBRETARRES  TETRAR
FERBERRWERBEAL - AEELE
SIEITEEIE - BN EAREEBR
BT ARREEBRIRKARBBILIERNTT
EEAREBEAL  NERAT _EAH
) LA B ] 2 IR AN R B 31T D 0.1%
FRARRRMOPE L B RERTERE
#8385,000,0008 T - BEERBRRARE
BERCRALAE o

BT 2 R AR B 28 B Ak
X BRTARBNAHIBTZEREL
RE - RTNBREZITEHRHEESR
T R—BEEBHKAL  ERGEERT
BNBRER L AR T %82 E
HA (AREERSE) I -

BRETEERESIRT @ HETEER()
BB A B BN R AR i FE R S AU T
B+ R(i)BEERHERE RS RER S
B AR B 0 FE B 22 P U P19 B (AR
BERE) -

BREYL N TRAAZAREINEER

RELIREZHER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 26. UG AER 2K
Details of the specific categories of options are as follows: El R SR EEFEAT
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Expiry date Exercise price
&4 BH SFEH TEHE & v B8R TEE
HK$
B TT
21 February 2012 No vesting period 21 February 2012 to 20 February 2014 1.33
20 February 2014
—E—_F i 55 8 5 —E—_fF —T—HWHFE=R=+H 1.33
—A=-+—8 —RA=-+—8=%
—E e
—A=+H
8 October 2013 No vesting period 8 October 2013 to 7 October 2015 1.822
7 October 2015
—ZE—=%+ANH 55 A =% —ZE-AF+ALH 1.822
+ANBE
—T—hF
+A+HRH
Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group. EESBAANEE - Blg L RHERE -
Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as FREREMERESBEOT -
follows:
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
share options price | share options price
BREHAE k¥ g it g3 2d= N5
TEE TEME
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Outstanding at FHER T
the beginning of the year 8,400,000 1.769 900,000 1.330
Granted during the year FRERE - - 8,000,000 1.822
Exercised during the year FRBEITE (1,770,000) 1.622 (500,000) 1.822
Expired during the year FRE @ (180,000) 1.330 — —
Outstanding at FRERD
the end of the year 6,450,000 1.822 8,400,000 1.769
Exercisable at FRATE
the end of the year 6,450,000 1.822 8,400,000 1.769

102
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$2.265. The
options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1 year (2013: 2 years) and
the exercise prices are HK$1.822 (2013: range from HK$1.330
to HK$1.822). In 2014, no options were granted. In 2013, options
were granted on 8 October 2013. The estimated fair values of
the options granted on those dates are HK$0.36.

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial Option

26. LR ABER ZFR @)

FR - BRETEBNMEFTHRES
2.265% 70 ° FRE R H B R INEF
BRBANBBIE(CT—=F : 26F) >
IEEAR182BT(ZE—=F : MR
1.330/B L E1.822/87T) - R-Z—N
FrUERLERE - N_Z—=F ' #
REDN -—E—=F+ /\BEL - Lit
B H% H B 5T A F(E 50.36/8

7T|:o

AFAE TR~ B M A -

Pricing Model. The inputs into the model are as follows: RABARNBERT :

2013

—z—=

Weighted average share price ke IR E 1.822
Weighted average exercise price InHEFHITEE 1.822
Expected volatility TEHIRE B) 42%
Expected life TEHAFF HR 2 years,/ 4
Risk free rate 2 [ B 1) = 0.34%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B as 0%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the year preceding
the date of grant of the options. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on the Group’s best estimate,
for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

B TR EA 2 B A
B2 AR B £ R B - AR
FROTE A B AR I A SR B A
AR (TR IR AERNT Bl
iR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

27. AR BB BEAMRR T

2014 2013
—Z-mF —F—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR Z2&%E 104,808,579 66,857,639
Current assets REEE
Due from subsidiaries B U B /BB N Rl 3R IE - 5,370,758
Current liabilities REEE
Due to a subsidiary e — R B A R F A 636,900 636,900
Accruals fEETE A 3,060,368 3,875,230
3,697,268 4,512,130
Net current (liabilities)/assets BRE (BB EE (3,697,268) 858,628
Net assets BEEZFE 101,111,311 67,716,267
EQUITY i
Share capital A&7 2,617,701 2,165,001
Reserves b1 98,493,610 65,551,266
101,111,311 67,716,267

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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28. RESERVES 28. ##E

(a)

(b)

Group (@) A%
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements AEBRENSERET RIS
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit W g K Ho At 2 A SR A R AR &
or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated mEBERFIT o
statement of changes in equity.
Company (b) AT
Share-based  Available-for
Share payment  sale security Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
NRAAER, THEERS
R EE RES: i it ER ag
(Note (c)(i) (Note (c)(iv])
(e (KEEc)m)
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT oo BT BT BT
At 1 January 2013 W-Z-=%-f-H 38,030,244 224,000 178,000 (2,664,943) 35,767,301
Loss for the year ENEE - - - (6213035 (6,213,035
Fair value changes on available-for-sale A4t HELREEATFE 28
financial assets - - (178,000) - (178,000)
Employee share option benefit EEERERT — 2,892,000 = = 2,892,000
Exercise of share options by employees {& 877 (¢ 8k i# 1,086,750 (180,750) - - 906,000
Conversion of convertible notes ARTHREE 32,377,000 - - - 32,377,000
At 31 December 2013 and RZ5-=
1 January 2014 TZA=1-8k
“2-mE-A—-H 71,493,994 2,935,250 - (8,877,978) 65,551,266
Loss for the year FRER - - - (2,945531)  (2,945,531)
Exercise of share options by employees (€ &7 (£ 5 & 3,411,775 (558,775) - - 2,853,000
Issue of shares on placement RERTRA 33,930,000 - - - 33,930,000
Transaction costs attributable o REEERAKA
placement (895,125) - - - (895,125)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-RE+-A=t-H 107,940,644 2,376,475 - (11,823,509) 98,493,610
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #{Z — T —MF+_A=+—HIEFE

28. RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

U

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

v)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 4 to the financial statements.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-settled share-
based payments in note 26 to the financial
statements.

Other reserve

The other reserves represent the difference between
the nominal value of the issued capital of Legend
Strategy Limited, Lai Ying International Limited and
Triple Leaf Limited, the then shareholders of Legend
Strategy Limited and the nominal value of the
135,000,001 shares issued and allotted to the
shareholders of the above companies by the
Company.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
WEERERERER QA

28. ##E &)

(c)

RENEEREN
()  BwER

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

REFASHE QB - AQF]
s ERAES A DR T A
RARR - EEEEFIRN R
B BEHEARRABRENEE
R—REBHEREFTHHNE
I5 o

S E 1 15

SN i i PR R B G O E TS BT 15
WREEHNMAINEZREE
P o R TOIRIE B 15 R Y
EARENE ST RERERE

AT 1

EERBRTADIK - BAS
& h BB A BR B BE
ERFCER R R B E N
B o

U m B2 150

PARR A BBt 2 (R R T AR
SERAEBRL ZRTTERBR
BZERRGIHBZAF
18 - R ERRM 26T E
PARE 25 A B AR A0 B 2 A4
R Z SET KR -

H

HibfE#EEHEERAR - B
BB BRATREERA
AERNRR=ZEGR 72
BETRAmBESEAQRR L
PUN/NICT 5 R Gl o v
135,000,001 % f% {7 [ (& 2 [E
K =5 ©



29.

30.

31.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2013: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30.

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

ARG

RZZB—NE+-A=+—H  xEEAL
BEMNEAZARBBECE—=F 8 -

BEAERE
AR RS WROERAEMT -

2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
HK$ HK$
BT Vo
Contracted but not provided for BRTHERBE
— Property, plant and equipment — W - BREREE 2,954,960 38,225,301
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. KEHEHAE

The Group leases various hotel premises under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The lease terms of the tenancy
agreements are set out in Note 22. The leases have escalation
clauses and renewal rights. The total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable
as follows:

REE W BEE R E AT HEE g &
EmEEE - HERZNEBEIIRHE
22- MESHAF AP NEGRRMEN
o NAIGHE EHE AR KB BT &
EREMZRDAT

2014 2013

—ZE-gF —E—=F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 11,370,376 13,179,879
In the second to fifth years inclusive —EhF (BEEREMSF) 42,523,234 40,631,817
After five years AFE 54,526,630 76,191,099
108,420,240 130,002,795
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

32. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 32. ARKLEHELH

ARRANGEMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases

RZEB—NE+-_A=+—H  xEEAR
PRIHHGLHER N 2 KRR BT &EM

as follows: SWAWT -
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=F
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Within one year —FR 2,527,486 2,536,462
In the second to fifth years inclusive ZERTF (BEEEMRST) 10,109,945 10,145,847
After five years AF% 4,423,101 6,975,270
17,060,532 19,657,579

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEFRS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had

BRUMBHRREMATRENRETRS M
BRI AKRERFRAEATHRESTR

the following transactions with its related parties during the year. Z °
2014 2013
—2-mF —F-=F
HK$ HK$
BT 78T

Management fee income BEEERA

— Waterfront — KE 592,846 118,189
— Jinhua — REE 855,775 —
1,448,621 118,189

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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34. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 34. RMB AT Z2RE

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as RZZE—MF+=RA=+—H  [BAF
follows: ZEHIBMT ¢
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration Issued and paid ownership
Company name and operation up capital interest Principal activities
1T EETR BB AR
AR BB TR &E R EHEER Aok FTEXK
Legend Strategy International BVI 4 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding
Limited of US$1 each (direct)
BB R A A RERUES BR1ETTH4 (BE#%) REER
% & 38 A%
Legend Strategy Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% Investment holding and
ordinary shares (indirect) provision of hotel
consultancy services
=¥ =1 NG B 10,000,000 7T 100% REER
AR (%) AR ME 5 B AR 7
Welcome Inn Management Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 100% Provision of hotel
Limited (indirect) management services
HAREREEEEER AT BB 178 7T & AR (F#) REBEE B RS
Legend Strategy Management BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% Rental of hotel premise
Limited US$1 (indirect)
REBRELES BR1ZETHIR (F#) BIEYHXEE
Shenzhen Yuelai Inn Tourists The PRC* HK$8,000,000 100% Hotel operations
Co., Ltd. (indirect)
AR EF AR IR SR R A A AR 8,000,000/ 7T (E%) B E 2 &
Shenzhen Yingde Tourists The PRC* HK$8,000,000 100% Hotel operations
Co., Ltd. (indirect)
RN BEIRZEE R A A B 8,000,000/ 7T (E%) B JE & B
Shenzhen Modern Tourists The PRC* HK$1,000,000 100% Hotel operations and
Co., Ltd. (indirect) provision of hotel
consultancy services
RINEEREERAR AR B 1,000,000/ 7T () B E S & AR B S
B8 1 AR 75
Shenzhen Yuelai Inn Co., Ltd. The PRC* HK$5,000,000 100% Hotel operations
(indirect)
RN R ERE G R A A B 5,000,000/ T () B & E
* Wholly owned Foreign Enterprise * SN BB D
The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which EREFEAEEEE BESBBESE
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. FEXENMBRARFS o
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35.

36.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 22 December 2014, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Emperor Securities Limited (“Placing Agent”)
whereby the Company agreed to place, through the Placing
Agent, on a best effort basis, a maximum of 52,300,000 new
shares to not less than six placees at a price of HK$0.66 per
placing share.

On 9 January 2015, the Company completed the placing, in which
52,300,000 placing shares have been successfully placed by
the Placing Agent to not less than six placees at the placing
price of HK$0.66 per placing share. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$33.9 million were raised from the placing.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2015.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
WEERERERER QA

35.

36.

HERREE

RZZE—NF+-_A=+=H ' AQFHE
HEFESEB) AR R ([RERE])FT
Y —IERE W Bl - AARRESEA
fid & R EE 5 ) A IR B & 115 0.66 78 T 8
B MAERANBEARALRERS
52,300,0000% %7 B {7 °

R-ZT—RF—ANB » KRARTEARR
€ BERERKIIASKES%150.66/8
TTHREE  MANERASBEEARS
52,300,0008% FR & B 17 AL & 5 RORF
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Summary Financial Information

MBERBE

The summary of the combined results of the Group for each of the AEBEHZ -—"T—ZTF+_A=+—HIFE
year ended 31 December 2010 and the assets, liabilities and non-  SFEHNEHEEMEURKREFBN L —T—F
controlling interests of the Group as at 31 December 2010 has been F+-A=1+—HBWEE * BE KIEEH 1
extracted from the Company’s listing prospectus dated 30 June 2011.  #H A A RGN —_E——FXA=1+HT
Such summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group ~ ZER LB ER - ZSM B IREBEAEER
has been in existence throughout these financial years. The RAELBRZEZFHEERN—BEEFEMNRR
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December %%l - AEFEHE T NFE+_-_A=+—H
2014 and the consolidated assets, liabilities and non-controlling  IFFEMNGAEERAEER —ZT— NG+
interests of the Group as at 31 December 2014 are those set out in =~ A=+ —HHGEAEE « BENMIEIFHIERELS
the audited financial statements. Ftk B K ERMBRE o

RESULTS ¥iE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1t-HLEFE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“E-NF | ZF-=F —Z--F —E-—-F —T-%F

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT BT

Revenue Yizs 29,700,841 | 57,968906 91,155,199 69,592,354 32,317,933
(Loss)/profit before tax BFA (B8) /&7 (60,178,163) | (3,293,434) 43,726,938 28,852,083 13,522,667

Income tax credit/(expense) FEfEe/ (AR 8,634,678 | (3,960,343) (10,855,270)  (7,587,350) (3,973,136
(Loss)/profit for the year £R (B8R 5H (51,543,485) | (7,253,777) 32,871,668 21,264,683 9,549,531

Attributable to: BT AL :

Owners of the Company ARAEBA (51,543,485) | (7,253,177) 32,871,668 21,264,683 9,185,202
Non-controlling interests FEEfIt RS - - - - 364,329
(51,543,485) | (7,253,777) 32,871,668 21,264,683 9,549,531
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Summary Financial Information

MBERBE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

BE  BERFEFIEES

As at 31 December

R+=ZB=+-H

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

“E-mE | —2-—=F —T-—F —F——F —E-FF

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT B

Total assets BERE 162,087,990 185,630,140 176,160,788 107,146,344 31,597,999
Total liabilties AR (27,913,274) | (35,160,151) (57,095,783 (21,604,930) (16,312,883)
Non-controlling interests FEHIMEER - - - - -
134,174,716 119,065,005 85,541,414 15,285,116  (14,557,729)

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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